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NOTICE OF MEETING 

Tuesday, 18 July 2017 
Newham Dockside, 1000 Dockside Road, London, E16 2QU – 1.00 pm 

Members 

Councillor Ken Clark (Chair), Councillor Sheila Bain (Vice Chair), Councillor Osman Dervish, 
Councillor John Howard, Councillor Steven Kelly, Councillor Patrick Murphy, Councillor Lynda 
Rice and Councillor Jeff Wade  

Sharon Lea 11 July 2017 
Interim Managing Director 

Tel: 020 8724 5614 
E-mail: sharon.lea@eastlondonwaste.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 

For Information: 1. Apologies for absence 

For Information: 2. Declaration of Members Interest 

 In accordance with the Constitution, Members are asked to 
declare any personal or prejudicial interest they may have in any 
matter which is to be considered at this meeting. 

For Decision: 3. Minutes – To agree the minutes of the Authority’s Annual General 
Meeting held on 19 June 2017 and authorise the Chair to sign the 
same. (pages 1–4) 

For Decision: 4. Minutes – To agree the minutes of the Authority’s Extraordinary 
General Meeting held on 26 June 2017 and authorise the Chair to 
sign the same.  

 The Minutes are not available and will be circulated separately.   

For Decision: 5. Statement of Accounts & Auditor’s Report 2016/17 (pages 5-108) 

For Information: 6. Date of next meeting: 11 September 2017 

 Members are asked to note the date of the next Authority 
meeting.  

 7. Any other public items which the Chair decides are urgent. 
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For Decision 8. To consider whether it would be appropriate to pass a resolution 
pursuant to Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972.  
To consider whether it would be appropriate to pass a resolution 
to exclude the public and press from the remainder of the 
meeting due to the nature of the business to be transacted.   

Confidential Business 

The public and press have a legal right to attend ELWA meetings except where business is 
confidential or certain other sensitive information is to be discussed. At the time of 
publishing this Agenda there were no confidential or exempt items. 

For Decision 9. Any other confidential or exempt items which the Chair decides 
are urgent.  
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING MINUTES:  
19 JUNE 2017 (9.30 AM–10.00 AM) 
Present: 

Councillor K Clark (Chair), Councillor S Bain, Councillor O Dervish, Councillor S Kelly, Councillor P 
Murphy.   

1. Appointment of Chair, Vice Chair and ELWA Limited ‘A’ Director and alternate ‘A’ 
Director for the year 2017/18 

The Chair opened the meeting by requesting nominations, from the membership as set out in the 
Monitoring Officer’s report, for the posts Chair and Vice Chair of the Authority and ‘A’ Director and 
Alternate ‘A’ Director to ELWA Limited (the Contractor) for the municipal year 2017/18. 

Members nominated and unanimously agreed the appointments of ELWA Chair and Vice Chair 
for the year 2017/18 as follows. 

Chair: Councillor Ken Clark London Borough of Newham 
Vice Chair: Councillor Sheila Bain London Borough of Redbridge 
Elwa Limited ‘A’ Director: Councillor Steven Kelly  

(*subject to confirmation of appointment 
to ELWA) 

London Borough of Havering 
 

Members deferred the decision to appoint an Alternate (substitute) Director for the ELWA Limited 
‘A’ Director, pending the outcome of an organisational review carried out by a to be appointed Interim 
Managing Director. Members discussed the impact of the appointment of an Interim Managing 
Director to this role in relation ELWA Limited and listings at Companies House. 

2. Apologies for Absence 

An apology for absence was received on behalf of Councillor J Howard, Councillor J Wade and 
Councillor L Rice.  

3. Declaration of Members’ Interests 

There were none declared. 

4. Minutes of previous meeting (10 May 2017) 

Members confirmed as true and accurate the minutes of the Extraordinary General meeting held 
on 10 May 2017.  The Chair was authorised to sign the same.  

5. Nominations under Section 41 of the Local Government Act 1985: 

Members received the Monitoring Officer’s report on the statutory requirement to nominate from the 
membership one Member from each of the Constituent Councils to answer questions on behalf of the 
Authority put by other members of their Constituent Councils during council proceedings pertaining 
to the discharge of the waste functions by the Authority for the year 2017/18. 

Members nominated and agreed that the lead Members to answer questions on behalf of the 
Authority at their respective Constituent Councils would be the respective council’s lead member or 
lead for environment/waste matters, namely: 

London Borough of Barking & Dagenham: Councillor Lynda Rice 

London Borough of Havering: Councillor Osman Dervish 

London Borough of Newham: Councillor Patrick Murphy 

London Borough of Redbridge: Councillor John Howard 

Page 1 of 108



East London Waste Authority Agenda Item 3 
18 July 2017  

Page 2 of 4 
Agenda Item 03 (19.06.17 AGM Mins)  

  

6. Budget Control & Contract Monitoring Final Outturn for the year 2016/17 

Members received the Finance Director’s and Contract Manager’s joint report, together with 
appendices, which compared actual expenditure to 31 March 2017 with the original revenue budget 
approved in February 2016.  Specifically, the report covered Revenue Budget, Prudential Indicators 
and Contract Monitoring. 

Members were advised that this was a pleasing report, following a challenging couple of years and 
thanks were extended to the Managing Director and team for their efforts in achieving both ongoing 
contract savings of £0.441m and one-off savings of £0.978m.  The Chair confirmed that the Authority 
had now reached a much better financial position. Contrary to the projected year-end overspend the 
Authority had achieved an outturn underspend of £0.875m.  An over recovery of commercial waste 
income of £0.618 had been forecast as a result of LB Barking & Dagenham’s external housing 
contract being brought in house.  This position would continue until otherwise advised by LB Barking 
& Dagenham.   

On request, Officers provided an update regarding the lost Bedford non-contract waste income 
following the Frog Island fire.  This was the subject of the insurance claim.  

Appendix B provided a month by month breakdown of tonnages resulting in figures of Budget 
446,999t, Actual 448,358 and a variance of 1,359.  Recycling remained disappointing but an 
improvement on the previous year. 

Appendix C contained year-end outturn reserves details of General Reserve of £3m, Capital Reserve 
of £0.1m and Strategy Reserve at £1.285 for procurement.  

Members noted the report. 

7. External Audit Plan 2016/17: 

Members received the Finance Director’s report presenting the External Auditors draft Audit Plan.  
The report identified that the audit had started and detailed work on the Statement of Accounts was 
under way and that indicative costs of £18,270 would be met from the Revenue Budget. The 
Statement of Accounts would be considered at an Authority meeting in July 2017.   Costs for the 
2017/18 accounts would similarly be £18,270 but subject to review following the audit planning 
process. 

Jess Heath, External Auditor, KPMG attended the meeting and presented commentary and detail on 
the External Audit Plan 2016/17.  The Audit Plan headlined two main responsibilities, the Financial 
Statement and Value for Money Audits.  Two material risks had been identified these were 
Management Override of Controls and Pension Liability due to Local Government Pension Scheme 
Triennial Valuation.  Other areas of audit focus, were disclosure around retrospective restatement of 
comprehensive income and expenditure, movement in reserves statement and expenditure and 
funding analysis and PFI liability and related disclosures.  The initial value for money assessment 
found no significant risks for a VFM conclusion.  Members attention was drawn to page 12 of the 
audit plan, which confirmed the Audit fee for 2017/18 as being in line with previous years and 
page 15 which provided confirmation that there was no conflict of interest within the audit team. 

The Auditors confirmed that they will report back to the Authority on any major issues arising from 
the continuing audit. 

The Chair thanked the External Auditor and she left the meeting. 

Members noted and agreed the report. 
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8. Internal Audit Progress Report 2016/17, Audit Plan 2017/18 and Planned Audit 
Coverage to March 2022 

Members received the Internal Audit Progress report 2016/17, Audit Plan 2017/18, Planned Audit 
Coverage to March 2022 and appendices, together with the Finance Director’s commentary.  
Members were informed that based on the audit work undertaken during 2016/17, Internal Audit 
had reached the opinion that the Authority’s overall control framework was generally sound and that 
core financial systems continued to operate effectively.  There were no fundamental breakdowns in 
control that would result in material discrepancy.  This view was reinforced by the Authority’s External 
Auditors. 

Members attention was drawn to paragraph 5.3 which highlighted that based upon the audit work 
undertaken during 2016/17, Internal Audit had given the opinion that the Authority’s core financial 
systems and financial management were generally sound.  However, weaknesses were still evident 
within contract monitoring in the delivery of the Constituent Council’s contract monitoring 
programmes and reporting.  The Authority would need to liaise and work with the Constituent 
Councils to ensure that this element of the overall contract monitoring approach was robust, that 
risks are minimised and weaknesses identified and those also noted from the other focuses of 
monitoring should be addressed before controls can be considered fully effective.  No fraud or 
irregularity had been reported during the year.  

It was reported that robust financial management systems and controls were in place. 

The 6-year programme includes Review of the Constitution, Contract Rules, Financial Regulations, 
Corporate Governance, Risk Assessment, Business Continuity Planning, Anti-Fraud Arrangements 
and any other issues arising (IT/Personnel). 

The 5-year plan includes reviews of ELWA's monitoring arrangements for the contract, Constituent 
Council's monitoring arrangements, payments to the contractor, performance measures, TIM system 
and the weighbridge.  In addition to these audits sample compliance checks on the content within 
the monthly IWMS contract invoice will be carried out monthly or bi-monthly.  Additional 
management of the Authority’s assets (mainly the Landfill Sites) will be reviewed. 

Total number of audit coverage days for 2016/17 is 31 and 33 for the periods 2017/18 to 2021/22 
inclusive.  

Members were advised that the outcomes of the audit fed into the Annual Governance Statement. 

Members noted and agreed the audit coverage for 2016/17, 2017/18 and the five-year strategic 
plan as set out in the Appendix.  

9. Budgetary Control & Contract Monitoring to 30 April 2017 

Members received the joint report of the Finance Director and Contact Manager, together with the 
three appendices, Budget Monitoring Statement to end April, Tonnage Profile 2017/18 and Contract 
Monitoring Performance Update April 2017.   

Members were advised that the current projected outturn showed a net underspend to date of 
£0.176m based on a budget of £5.201m.  The variance on tonnage profiled for the month was 3,615 
tonnes under the budgeted figure and 1,471 tonnes less than April 2016.  The Budget and Levy 
setting process had assumed 469,000 tonnes at year end however other trends such as 
increases/decreases in household tonnages and demographic trends may affect the 2017/18 
position.  These fluctuating trends could also impact on the size of royalty payments in relation to 
spare capacity availability. 

Diversion for the month, although down on last year’s record figure, was on track at 89.1% and 
recycling was slightly above last year’s figure due, mainly, to increased BioMrf performance. 
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The current commercial waste income forecast outturn is expected to be £0.250m under budget at 
year end due to forecast additional tonnage from the London Borough of Barking & Dagenham’s 
housing service contract.  

Employee and non-contractor costs were broadly in line with budget. 

Members noted the report and forecast outturn. 

10. Date of Next Meeting:

Members noted the date of 18 July 2017 (EGM) and 11 September 2017 as the dates of the next 
Authority meetings. 

11. Any other public items

There were none. 

12. Private Business

Members resolved to exclude the public and press from the remainder of the meeting by reason 
of the nature of the business to be discussed which included information exempt from publication by 
virtue of paragraphs 1, 3, 4 and 8 respectively of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972 (as amended). 

13. ELWA Limited 04/05/17

Members noted the contents of the confidential Agenda pack and received a short commentary 
from the Managing Director and ‘A’ Director regarding the insurance position.  

14. Management Arrangements

Members received a progress report for the post of Interim Managing Director.  Meetings/interviews 
were scheduled and Officers advised that they report back to Members at an EGM in July with their 
preferred candidate for their consideration and approval. 

The Chair thanked the Managing Director for the good work he had done for ELWA and wished him 
every success with his career.   

Minutes agreed as a true record. 

Chair: 

Date: 
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AUTHORITY REPORT: STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS & AUDITOR’S REPORT 
2016/17 

1. Confidential Report: 

1.1 No. 

2. Recommendation:  

2.1 Members are asked to: 

a) Approve the Annual Governance Statement; 

b) Consider and comment on the draft letter of representation; 

c) Approve the draft Statement of Accounts for the financial year 2016/17.   

 

3. Purpose: 

3.1 The Statement of Accounts presents the financial position of the Authority for 2016/17. 
Members approve the Statement of Accounts as well as the Annual Governance 
Statement. Members also consider the report of the External Auditors. 

4. Background:  

4.1 This report provides the Authority with the External Auditor’s report to those charged 
with Governance for the year 2016/17 and the draft letter of representation. The report 
is also requesting that Members approve the draft Statement of Accounts for the 
financial year 2016/17 (Appendix A) 

4.2 The Authority is required annually to conduct a review of the effectiveness of internal 
control arrangements and this is incorporated in the Annual Governance Statement 
(AGS). Members are requested to approve the AGS as part of the 2016/17 Statement 
of Accounts.   

4.3 There is a requirement for the external auditors to communicate any relevant matters 
in a report known as the ISA 260 report. This report summarises the main external 
auditor findings and recommendations arising from the 2016/17 Accounts. It also 
reports on work undertaken in connection with the use of resources, internal controls 
and risk of fraud.  

4.4 Each year a letter of representation is to be provided to the auditors in respect of the 
audit of the accounts (Appendix B). The letter sets out the responsibilities for the 
preparation of the financial statements and the basis of the representations made.    

5. Current Position: 2016/17 Accounts 

5.1 It is expected that the External Auditors, KPMG will give an unqualified opinion and 
certificate on the Accounts. 

5.2 The 2016/17 financial statements are prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). This continues to create extra work and has 
required additional resources, which can be demonstrated by the size of the financial 
statements.  

5.3 Members are reminded that it is the responsibility of the ‘responsible financial officer’ to 
sign and date the Statement of Accounts, and certify that it presents a true and fair 
view of the financial position of the Authority at the end of the financial year. However, 
Members are still required to formally approve the audited financial statements.  

Page 5 of 108



East London Waste Authority  Agenda Item 5 
18 July 2017 

Page 2 of 3 

Agenda Item 05 (Stmt Accs 16-17) 

5.4 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that from 2017/18 onwards the 
Authority must approve the audited Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance 
Statement no later than the 31 July in the financial year immediately following the 
financial year of the Statement of Accounts. The 2015 Regulations treat the 2016/17 
year as a ‘transitory year’ in which the Authority can approve the statement of Accounts 
by 30 September. Nevertheless, in preparation and as a dry run for the considerably 
tighter timetable for 2017/18 the timetable for 2016/17 has been aligned to the 
requirements for 2017/18.  

5.5 The draft Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement were signed off on 
the 31st May in advance of the 30 June deadline. 

5.6 Members are therefore being asked to approve the Statement of Accounts on 18 July 
2017, which is in advance of the deadline of 30 September and before 31 July (next 
year).  

5.7 The financial position as outlined in the Statement of Accounts is the same the 
Budgetary Control outturn report presented to the ELWA Authority meeting in June 
2017.Detailed information.  

6. Auditors attendance  

6.1 The External Auditors will provide a verbal update on this report at the Authority 
meeting. 

7. Conclusion: 

7.1 The audit of ELWA’s accounts has been completed in advance of the 30 September 
deadline. There is expected to be an unqualified opinion. 

 

8. Relevant officer:  

Maria G. Christofi, Finance Director / e-mail: elwa.finance@eastlondonwaste.gov.uk / 0208 708 
3034 

9. Appendices attached: 

9.1 Appendix A: Statement of Accounts for 2016/17 and Annual Governance Statement  

9.2 Appendix B: Draft Letter of Representation  

10. Background Papers: 

10.1 19/06/2017 – Budget Control & Contract Monitoring Final Outturn for the year 2016/17  

11. Legal Considerations: 

11.1 None. 

12. Financial considerations:  

12.1 As outlined in the report. 

13. Performance management considerations:  

13.1 None 

14. Risk management considerations:  

14.1 None. 
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15. Equalities considerations: 

15.1 There are no equality considerations arising from this report. 

16. Follow-up reports:  

16.1 None. 

17. Websites and e-mail links for further information:  

17.1 http://www.recycleforyourcommunity.com/waste_authority/meetings/default.aspx 

18. Glossary: 

AGS = Annual Governance Statement 

ELWA/the Authority = East London Waste Authority 

IFRS = International Financial Reporting Standards 

ISA = International Standard on Auditing. 

19. Approved by Management Board: 

19.1 July 2017 

20. Confidentiality: 

20.1 No. 
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NARRATIVE REPORT 

1. Preface 

1.1 The narrative report is a statement of an authority’s financial performance and 

demonstration of value for money of the use of its resources over the financial year. All 

public authorities in England are required to provide a narrative report with the 

Statement of Accounts under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 

1.2 This publication presents the Authority’s Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2017. 

Its purpose is to give clear and concise information about the financial affairs of the 

Authority to both Members of the Authority and the Public. 

1.3 Any enquiries about the Accounts or requests for further financial information should be 

addressed to the Finance Service, Lynton House, 255-259 High Road, Ilford, Essex, 

IG1 1NN. 

 

2. Key Financial Statements  

1.1 The Statement of Accounts for 2016/17 sets out the Authority’s income and expenditure 

for the financial year ending 31 March 2017 along with a number of supplementary 

statements and disclosure notes. The financial statements have been prepared adhering 

to the CIPFA’S code of practice and the International Financial Reporting Standards. The 

key financial statements and disclosure notes contained in the Statement of Accounts 

for 2016/17 are as follow: 

 The Movement in Reserves Statement (MiRS) – This Statement sets out the 

movement on the different reserves held by the Authority. It analyses the 

increase or decrease in net worth of the Authority as a result of incurring 

expenses, gathering income and from movements in the fair value of the assets.  

It also analyses the movement between reserves in accordance with statutory 

provisions.  

 The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) – This Statement 

summarises the costs of the services provided by the Authority and how they are 

met from resources such as service income, government grants and the levy 

income. 

 The Expenditure and Funding Analysis – This statement shows how annual 

expenditure is used and funded from resources in the Authority’s Budgetary 

Control Report and reconciles it with the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement, which shows those resources consumed or earned in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting practices 

 The Balance Sheet – This records the Authority’s year-end financial position.  It 

shows the Authority’s reserves, and its long and short term assets and liabilities.   

 The Cash Flow Statement – This summarises the flows of cash that have taken 

place into and out of the Authority’s bank accounts over the financial year. It 

shows cash flow movement as a result of the Authority’s operations, investing 

activities and financing decisions. 

 Notes to the Financial Statements – The notes provide more detail about the 

items contained in the key financial statements, the Authority’s Accounting 

Policies and other information to aid the understanding of the financial 

statements. 
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AN INTRODUCTION TO EAST LONDON WASTE AUTHORITY (ELWA) 

1. Introduction 

1.1 The East London Waste Authority (ELWA) was created by regulations made under the 

Local Government Act 1985. From 1 April 1986, ELWA assumed responsibility for the 

disposal of waste arising in the area covered by the London Boroughs of Barking and 

Dagenham, Havering, Newham and Redbridge.  

1.2 The Statement of Accounts on the following pages sets out the Authority’s financial 

position for the year to 31 March 2017. Further information on the nature and purposes 

of the Authority’s expenditure is contained in the annual Revenue and Capital Budgets 

which can be accessed on the ELWA website, http://eastlondonwaste.gov.uk 

 

2. Performance 

1.1 The principal activity driver on the budget is the level of waste tonnage delivered from 

the Constituent Councils. The 2016/17 budget and levy setting process assumed 

447,000 tonnes in 2016/17. Waste tonnage, although volatile from month to month 

during 2016/17, was at year end slightly above the tonnage assumed in the 2016/17 

Levy and Budget report (approximately 1,000 tonnes higher). Taking account of the end 

of year reconciliation the payments to the contractor (excluding insurance) were 

£58,804,000 an adverse variation from budget of £235,000 i.e. 0.4%. 

1.2 Recycling was slightly ahead of last year with 121,000t of material recycled in the year. 

The main contributor to the increase was the performance of the BioMrf’s along with 

improved MRF performance relating to kerbside collections material being outsourced to 

a third party MRF. 

1.3 Diversion performance continued in an upward trend getting back to the 90% figure 

achieved at the beginning of the year with a total of 281,000t diverted from landfill, it is 

anticipated this will continue into the new year. 

 

3. Income and Expenditure Account 

1.1 The Authority’s budget for 2016/17 projected that there would be a net surplus of 

£1,207,000 which would be used to increase Revenue reserves. Although Actual waste 

tonnage was slightly above target, savings and underspends elsewhere in the budget 

have had a positive impact on the final net revenue expenditure position. This is 

summarised in the table below. 

Authority Budget Monitoring Statement  

to 31 March 2017 

Budget Actual 

£000 £000 

Net Expenditure on Services  59,351 58,476 

PFI Grant  (3,991) (3,991) 

Levy Raised (56,567) (56,567) 

Net revenue outturn before accountancy adjustments & 

contribution from reserves 
(1,207) (2,082) 

Budgeted Contribution to Reserves 1,207 1,207 

Revenue underspend for the period - (875) 
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1.2 As a result of the accounting adjustments that are required to be made under IFRS, the 

outturn for the year as shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement is a surplus of £2,554,000. The table on page 6 provides a reconciliation 

between this net surplus figure and the final outturn position shown above of a 

£2,082,000 surplus before contributions to reserves. Further detailed analysis can be 

seen in the Expenditure and Funding Analysis on page 16 and Note 17. 

4. Reserves Strategy 

1.1 The Authority's reserves are a vital part of its financial management arrangements that 

cushion the impact of uneven cash flows, avoid unnecessary temporary borrowing and 

cushion the impact of unexpected events or emergencies. 

1.2 The approach to reserves is a continuation of ELWA’s long-term strategy. The Authority 

has agreed to set aside a minimum level of normal operational revenue balances based 

on an analysis of risk.  Both reserve balances and risk are constantly reviewed as part 

of this Budget Strategy process. 

1.3 Further details can be found in the 2016/17 Levy report (08.02.16) and the 2017/18 

Levy Report (06.02.17). Both reports are available at: 

http://eastlondonwaste.gov.uk/meetings 

1.4 In the 2016/17 Levy report the strategy proposed a continuous build-up of the Revenue 

Reserve balance to total £3,000,000 for the year ended 31 March 2017 along with an 

allocation of £2,250,000 by 31 March 2018 for the generation of a specific Strategy 

Reserve to cover costs arising out of the post 2027 waste disposal arrangements.  

1.5 The actual balance for the Revenue Reserve as at 31 March 2017 is £3,000,000 (See 

table at 4.7). The balance on the Strategy Reserve stands at £1,285,000. 

1.6 The Revenue and Strategy Reserves form part of the usable reserves. The total actual 

balance for usable reserves as at 31 March 2017 is £4,385,000 (see MIRs page 13). 

1.7  

 

Total Revenue Reserve 

 

2016/17 

Levy 

Report 

Proposed  

Balance 

2016/17 

Actual  

Balance 

Surplus 

£000 £000 £000 

Balance at 1 April 2016  1,793 1,793 - 

Addition to Reserve  1,207 2,082 875 

Movement Between Reserves - (875) (875) 

Balance at 31 March 2017 3,000 3,000 - 
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1.8 Reconciliation of the Accounting Adjustments required under IFRS. 

1.9 The adjustments arising from IFRS compliant accounting treatment have had no impact 

on overall net expenditure and movements on reserves. 

 

5. Capital Programme/Borrowing Facilities 

1.1 Since the introduction of the Prudential Code in 2004, the Authority can set its own 

capital spending limit as long as it is affordable, sustainable and prudent. The Local 

Government and Housing Act 1989 specifies that all new capital receipts generated 

from the sale of non-housing land, buildings and other assets are available to finance 

capital expenditure.  

1.2 A capital receipt of £115,000 received in 2015/16 was used in 2016/17 to finance the 

purchase of a flare for Aveley Land fill site and to part fund the PFI capital repayment. 

1.3 ELWA can borrow for any purpose for which it is legally entitled to incur expenditure. 

Loans can be raised for new capital requirements, to replace maturing debt and also to 

meet short-term revenue cash flow deficits. No additional borrowing was required 

during 2016/17. 

 

 Actual Actual 

 £000 £000 

Balance before accountancy adjustments   (2,082) 

Accountancy adjustments   (134) 

Balance of net expenditure to be financed by reserves  (2,216) 

PFI contract accountancy adjustments (see Note 25):   

Service Charge 

Lifecycle Asset Addition 

Contingent Rent 

(5,856) 

(906) 

(3,972) 

 

Depreciation and Impairment of PFI assets 5,858  

Interest Payable on Finance Leases 4,538 (338) 

Surplus for the year after PFI adjustments  (2,554) 

Movement between Revenue Reserve and Other Reserves   

Capital Receipts Reserve (115)  

Transfer from Capital Adjustment Account 519  

Accumulated Absences Account 2  

Transfer to Pensions Reserve (44) 362 

Capital Reserve Transfer (300)  

Strategy Reserve Transfer 1,285 985 

Net Effect on Revenue Reserve  (1,207) 

Revenue Reserve Brought Forward  (1,793) 

Revenue Reserve Carried Forward  (3,000) 
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6. ELWA Operations 

1.1 ELWA transferred its principal operations and contracts to Shanks Waste Management 

Limited as part of the 25-year Integrated Waste Management Strategy (IWMS) Contract 

partly backed by PFI funding in December 2002. Since then ELWA’s direct operational 

responsibilities have been in relation to its closed landfill sites. Following the sale of Hall 

Farm, the authority is now responsible for three sites. 

 

7. Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 

1.1 The Authority is legally obliged to offer guaranteed pension benefits to its employees. 

The statutory pension fund provider for the Authority is the London Pensions Fund 

Authority (LPFA). The LPFA Fund is maintained at a level to eventually meet the 

Authority’s long-term liabilities for pension benefits, with the Authority’s contributions 

fixed accordingly.  

1.2 The results of the 2016 triennial actuarial valuation were used as part of the 

calculations for these accounts. The next valuation is due as at 31 March 2019.  

1.3 As at 31 March 2017 the Authority’s estimated liability for retirement benefits exceeded 

the value of assets by £1,663,000 (as at 31 March 2016 £1,494,000) when valued in 

accordance with the accounting standards. The increase in liability was due to the 

increase in the present value of the scheme’s obligation being greater than the increase 

in the fair value of the fund’s assets. 

1.4 Following the Public Pensions Services Act 2013 from 1 April 2014 the LGPS scheme 

became a career average revalued earnings’ (CARE) scheme with new contribution 

bands and rates. 

 

8. PFI Contract Insurance 

1.1 Following a fire at the Authority’s Mechanical Biological Treatment (MBT) facility on Frog 

Island in 2014. The loss of operations and royalty income for this period along with the 

replacement of the asset led to a significant claim to the insurers. 

1.2 The claim resulted in a large increase in the renewal premium. ELWA’s contribution for 

2016/17 was £999,600.  

 

9. Future Outlook 

1.1 The future outlook for the Authority depends heavily on the pattern of waste tonnage 

growth across the four constituent councils which itself is largely determined by housing 

growth and population increases. The five year Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 

starting in 2017/18 assumes no further use of reserves to mitigate levy increases. It 

also assumes that significant funding is transferred into the Strategy Reserve to cover 

costs arising in preparation for the post 2027 waste disposal arrangements. The 

2017/18 levy is set to increase by an average 8.79% of which 2.25% reflects the 

requirement to build-up the Strategy Reserve. 

1.2 The constituent councils covered by the East London Waste Authority over the next few 

years will face major demographic changes leading to the need for significant additional 

housing. This will result in an upward pressure on total waste to be disposed costs even 

if tonnages per household can be limited or reduced.   

1.3 Because of the underlying level of waste growth, inflation built into the contract, and 

the need to provide funding for the post 2027 waste disposal arrangements the levy has 

been projected to increase each year of the MTFS. Unless there is substantial progress 

towards mitigating tonnage increases, then constituent councils will continue to face 
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levy increases at the same time as central government funding to local authorities is 

reducing. 

 

10. Conclusion  

1.1 The Statement of Accounts provides a detailed and comprehensive picture of the 

Authority's performance for 2016/17, as required by statute.   

1.2 I should like to thank the ELWA staff and the relevant staff and colleagues in the four 

Constituent Councils who have helped to prepare this document.  

1.3 A thorough understanding of the Authority’s financial position is essential in the light of 

the financial challenges that it faces.  I hope that Members of the Authority, residents of 

the constituent boroughs and other readers find this document useful.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

M G Christofi, BA (Hons), FCCA, CPFA 

Finance Director 

18 July 2017 
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 

1. The Authority’s Responsibilities 

1.1 The Authority is required: 

 To make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to 

ensure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of 

those affairs.  In this Authority, that officer is the Finance Director. 

 To manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources 

and safeguard its assets. 

 To approve the Statement of Accounts. 

 

2. The Managing Director’s Responsibilities 

1.1 The Managing Director is responsible for: 

 Maintaining effective financial controls and for securing the accuracy and 

integrity of financial information and systems operating within their department. 

 Complying with any procedural instructions issued by the Finance Director. 

 Preparing the Annual Governance Statement. 

 

3. The Finance Director’s Responsibilities 

1.1 The Finance Director is responsible for the preparation of the Authority’s Statement of 

Accounts which, in terms of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in United Kingdom, is required to give a true and fair view of the financial 

position of the Authority as at the 31 March 2017 and its income and expenditure for 

the year ending 31 March 2017. 

1.2 In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Finance Director has:  

 Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently; 

 Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; 

 Complied with the Code of Practice. 

1.3 The Finance Director has also: 

 Kept proper accounting records which were up to date; 

 Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 

irregularities. 

 

4. Statement of the Finance Director 

I certify that the Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the Authority’s 

income and expenditure for the year ending 31 March 2017 and the Authority’s financial 

position as at 31 March 2017. 

 

 

M G Christofi, BA (Hons), FCCA, CPFA 

Finance Director 

18 July 2017 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF EAST LONDON 
WASTE AUTHORITY 

1.1 We have audited the financial statements of East London Waste Authority for the year 

ended 31 March 2017 on pages 13 to 60.  The financial reporting framework that has 

been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 

Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17.  

1.2 This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance 

with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.  Our audit work has been 

undertaken so that we might state to the members of the Authority, as a body, those 

matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other 

purpose.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 

responsibility to anyone other than the members of the Authority, as a body, for our 

audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.  

Respective responsibilities of the Finance Director and auditor 

1.3 As explained more fully in the Statement of the Finance Director’s Responsibilities, the 

Finance Director is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which 

includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the 

CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom, 

and for being satisfied that the financial statements give a true and fair view. Our 

responsibility is to audit, and express an opinion on, the financial statements in 

accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and 

Ireland).  Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s 

Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

Scope of the audit of the financial statements 

1.4 An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are 

free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error.  This includes an 

assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Authority’s 

circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the 

reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Finance Director; and 

the overall presentation of the financial statements.   

1.5 In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Narrative 

Statement to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and 

to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or 

materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing 

the audit.  If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or 

inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.  

  

Opinion on financial statements 

1.6 In our opinion the financial statements:  

 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 

2017 and of the Authority’s expenditure and income for the year then ended; 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 

Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17. 

 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception  

1.7 The Code of Audit Practice requires us to report to you if: 
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 the Annual Governance Statement set out on pages 61 to 67 which accompanies 

the financial statements does not reflect compliance with ‘Delivering Good 

Governance in Local Government: a Framework’ published by CIPFA/SOLACE in 

June 2007; or  

 the information given in the Narrative Statement for the financial year for which 

the financial statements are prepared is not consistent with the financial 

statements; or 

 any matters have been reported in the public interest under Section 24 of the 

Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of, 

the audit; or  

 any recommendations have been made under Section 24 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014; or 

 any other special powers of the auditor have been exercised under the Local 

Audit and Accountability Act 2014. 

 

1.8 We have nothing to report in respect of these matters. 

 

Conclusion on East London Waste Authority’s arrangements for securing 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 

 

Authority’s responsibilities 

1.9 The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper 

stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of 

these arrangements. 

Auditor’s responsibilities 

1.10 We are required under Section 20(1) (c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 

to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.  The Code of Audit 

Practice issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) requires us to report to 

you our conclusion relating to proper arrangements. 

1.11 We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us from 

concluding that the Authority has put in place proper arrangements for securing 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to 

consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority’s arrangements 

for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating 

effectively. 

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness 

in the use of resources 

1.12 We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having 

regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by C&AG in November 2016, as 

to whether East London Waste Authority had proper arrangements to ensure it took 

properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable 

outcomes for taxpayers and local people.  The C&AG determined this criterion as that 

necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves 

whether East London Waste Authority put in place proper arrangements for securing 

Page 19 of 108



East London Waste Authority 

Statement of Accounts 

For the Year Ended 31 March 2017 

Page 12 of 73 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 

March 2017. 

1.13 We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice.  Based on our risk 

assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on 

whether, in all significant respects, East London Waste Authority had put in place proper 

arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

  

Conclusion  

1.14 On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance issued by the C&AG in 

November 2016, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, East London Waste 

Authority put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2017. 

 

Certificate  

1.15 We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of East London 

Waste Authority in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice. 

 

 

 

 

Neil Hewitson 

For and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor 

Chartered Accountants 

15 Canada Square 

London  

E14 5GL 

     July 2017 

Page 20 of 108



East London Waste Authority 

Statement of Accounts 

For the Year Ended 31 March 2017 

Page 13 of 73 

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 

1.   2016/17 Movement 

1.1 This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the 

Authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund 

expenditure or reduce the levy) and ‘other reserves’. The surplus or deficit on the 

Provision of Service line on page 15 shows the true economic cost of providing the 

Authority’s service, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement.  
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 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000  £000 

Balance at 31 
March 2016 

(1,793) - (400) (115) (2,308) 
 

9,633 (33,061) 1,494 5 (21,929) 
 

(24,237) 

Movement in 

Reserves during 

2016/2017 

     

 

     

 

 

Total 

Comprehensive 

Income and 
Expenditure 

(2,554) - - - (2,554) 

 

- (115) 125 - 10 

 

(2,544) 

Adjustment 

between accounting 
basis and funding 

basis under 

regulations (Note 

5) 

1,347 (1,285) 300 115 477 

 

(1,174) 655 44 (2) (477) 

 

- 

Decrease / 
(Increase) in 

2016/17 
(1,207) (1,285) 300 115 (2,077) 

 

(1,174) 540 169 (2) (467) 

 

(2,544) 

Balance at 31 

March 2017 

carried forward 

(3,000) (1,285) (100) - (4,385) 

 

8,459 (32,521) 1,663 3 (22,396) 

 

(26,781) 
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2. 2015/16 Movement Restated  

 

The Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line has been removed. This has had no impact on the 

15/16 figures. 
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 £000 £000 £000 £000  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000  £000 

Balance at 31 
March 2015 

(2,967) (400) - (3,367) 
 

11,542 (33,614) 1,539 1 (20,532) 
 

(23,899) 

Movement in 
Reserves during 

2015/2016 
    

 

     

 

 

Total Comprehensive 
Income and 

Expenditure 
(246) - - (246) 

 

- - (92) - (92) 

 

(338) 

Adjustment between 
accounting basis and 

funding basis under 

regulations (Note 5) 

1,420 - (115) 1,305 

 

(1,909) 553 47 4 (1,305) 

 

- 

Decrease / 

(Increase) in 
2015/16 

1,174 - (115) 1,059 

 

(1,909) 553 (45) 4 (1,397) 

 

(338) 

Balance at 31 

March 2016 carried 

forward 

(1,793) (400) (115) (2,308) 

 

9,633 (33,061) 1,494 5 (21,929) 

 

(24,237) 
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 

This statement summarises the resources that have been generated and consumed in 

providing services and managing the Authority during the year. It includes all day-to-day 

expenses and related income on an accruals basis.  

Expenditure of £329,000 (15/16 £331,000) on Support Services provided by the Authority’s 

Constituent Councils has been separated from Employee Costs. 

Restated 2015/16  2016/17 

Gross 
Expenditure 

 

£000 

Gross 
Income 

 

£000 

Net 
Expenditure 

/Income 

£000 

 Gross 
Expenditure 

 

£000 

Gross 
Income 

 

£000 

Net 
Expenditure 

/Income 

£000 

1,205  1,205 Supplies and Services 1,072  1,072 

43,094  43,094 Service Charges (Note 25) 44,098  44,098 

349  349 Employee Costs  353  353 

331  331 Support Services 329  329 

121  121 Premises Related Expenditure 139  139 

2  2 Transport Related Expenditure 1  1 

5,646  5,646 
Depreciation and Impairment of Fixed 
Assets (Note 8) 

5,858  5,858 

2,683  2,683 Third Party Payments 2,656  2,656 

 2,486 (2,486) Commercial Waste Charges  3,084 (3,084) 

 4,008 (4,008) PFI and other Grants (Note 21)  4,061 (4,061) 

 1,158 (1,158) Other Income  1,880 (1,880) 

53,431 7,652 45,779 Cost of Services 54,506 9,025 45,481 

       

7,493 117 7,376 
Financing and investment income and 
Expenditure (Note 7) 

8,687 32 8,655 

 53,401 (53,401) Income from Levy  56,567 (56,567) 

- - - 
PFI Deferred Income released (Note 
25) 

 123 (123) 

60,924 61,170 (246) 
Deficit/(Surplus) on provision of 

services 
63,193 65,747 (2,554) 

       

  - 

Surplus on revaluation of Property, 
plant and equipment assets 

(Note 8) 

  (115) 

  (92) 
Actuarial (gains)/losses on pension 

assets/Liabilities (Note 26) 
  125 

  (92) 
Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure 

  10 

  (338) 
Total Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure 

  (2,544) 
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EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS 

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from 

resources (government grant and the Levy) by the authority in comparison with those 

resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

practices. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes. 

Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is 

presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 

 

 

 

2015/16  2016/17 

Net 

Expenditure 

chargeable 
to the 

Revenue 

Reserve 

 

£000 

Adjustments 

between the 

funding and 

accounting 

basis 

 

 

£000 

Net 
Expenditure in 

the 

Comprehensive 

Income and 

Expenditure 

Statement  

£000 

 Gross  Net 

Expenditure 

chargeable 

to the 

Revenue 

Reserve 

 

£000 

Adjustments 

between the 

funding and 

accounting 

basis 

 

 

£000 

Net 

Expenditure in 

the 

Comprehensive 

Income and 

Expenditure 
Statement  

£000 

552 984 1,536 

Supplies and Support 

Services (including 

Contingency Expenditure) 

402 999 1,401 

58,449 (15,355) 43,094 
Contractor Service Charge 

(Note 25) 
59,804 (15,706) 44,098 

349 - 349 Employee Costs  360 (7) 353 

123 - 123 
Transport & Premises 

Related Expenditure 
140 - 140 

- 5,646 5,646 
Depreciation and 
Impairment of Fixed Assets 

(Note 8) 

- 5,858 5,858 

2,666 17 2,683 Third Party Payments 2,586 70 2,656 

(2,486) - (2,486) Commercial Waste Charges (3,084) - (3,084) 

(3,991) (17) (4,008) 
PFI and other Grants (Note 
21) 

(3,991) (70) (4,061) 

(1,598) 440 (1,158) Efficiencies & Other Income (1,880) - (1,880) 

54,064 (8,285) 45,779 Cost of Services 54,337 (8,856) 45,481 

183 (183) - Capital Financing Costs 180 (180) - 

(80) 80 - Bank Interest Receivable (32) 32 - 

- 7,376 7,376 

Financing and investment 

income and Expenditure 
(Note 7) 

- 8,655 8,655 

(53,401) - (53,401) Income from Levy (56,567) - (56,567) 

- - - 
PFI Deferred Income 

released (Note 25) 
- (123) (123) 

766 (1,012) (246) 
Surplus or Deficit on 

Provision of Services 
(2,082) (472) (2,554) 
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For a breakdown of Usable Reserves, please refer to the Movement in Reserves Statement on 

page 13. 

 

2015/16  2016/17 

Net 
Expenditure 

chargeable 

to the 

Revenue 

Reserve 

 

£000 

Adjustments 

between the 

funding and 

accounting 
basis 

 

 

£000 

Net 
Expenditure in 

the 

Comprehensive 

Income and 

Expenditure 

Statement  

£000 

 Gross  Net 

Expenditure 

chargeable 

to the 
Revenue 

Reserve 

 

£000 

Adjustments 

between the 

funding and 

accounting 
basis 

 

 

£000 

Net 

Expenditure in 

the 

Comprehensive 
Income and 

Expenditure 

Statement  

£000 

766 (1,012) (246) 
(Surplus) or Deficit on 
Provision of Services 

(2,082) (472) (2,554) 

(110) 110 - Asset Disposal - - - 

- - - 
Accumulated Absence 

previous year reversal 
5 (5) - 

440 (440) - 
Efficiency recognised in 
14/15 reserves 

- - - 

(37) 37 - 
Investment impairment 
recovered 

- - - 

1,059 (1,305) (246) 
Net Expenditure 

chargeable to Reserves 
(2,077) (477) (2,554) 

(3,367)   
Opening Usable Reserve 

Balance 
(2,308)   

1,059   
Plus (Surplus) or Deficit on 
Revenue Reserve in Year 

(2,077)   

(2,308)   
Usable Reserve Balance 
C/Fwd. 

(4,385)   
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BALANCE SHEET 

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the 31 March 2017 of the assets and liabilities 

recognised by the Authority. The net assets of the Authority (assets less liabilities) are 

matched by the reserves held by the Authority. Reserves are reported in two categories. The 

first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Authority may use to 

provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory 

limitations on their use (for example the Capital Reserve that may only be used to fund capital 

and repay debt). The second category of reserves is those that the Authority is not able to use 

to provide services. This category of reserves include reserves that hold unrealised gains and 

losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to 

provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the 

Movement in Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding 

basis under regulations’. 

 

 
 

M G Christofi, BA (Hons), FCCA, CPFA 

Finance Director 

18 July 2017 

31 March  

2016 

£000 

 Notes 

31 March 

2017 

£000 

102,608 Property, Plant & Equipment 8 100,688 

102,608 Long Term Assets  100,688 

7,838 Short Term Investments 29 8,313 

1,627 Short term Debtors 10 2,364 

- Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 11 

9,465 Current Assets  10,688 

(26) Short Term Borrowing 29 (26) 

(6,495) Short Term Creditors 12 (5,842) 

(250) Provisions 27 (250) 

(44) Cash and Cash Equivalents  11 - 

(6,815) Current Liabilities  (6,118) 

(1,250) Long Term Borrowing 29 (1,250) 

(78,277) PFI Finance Lease Liability 25 (72,987) 

(1,494) Pension Liability 26 (1,663) 

- PFI Deferred Income 25 (2,577) 

(81,021) Long Term Liabilities  (78,477) 

24,237 Net Assets / Liabilities  26,781 

(2,308) Usable Reserves 13/MIR (4,385) 

(21,929) Unusable Reserves 14 (22,396) 

(24,237) Total Reserves  (26,781) 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Authority 

during the reporting period. The Statement shows how the Authority generates and uses cash 

and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. 

The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent 

to which the operations of the authority are funded by way of levy and grant income or from 

the recipients of services provided by the authority. Investing activities represent the extent to 

which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the 

Authority’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in 

predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Authority. 

 

2015/16 

£000  

 2016/17 

£000  

246 Surplus on the provision of services                      2,554 

7,234 Adjustments to net deficit on the provision of services for non- cash movements 4,388 

7,480 Net cash flows from Operating Activities (Note 15) 6,942 

2,017 Investing Activities (Note 16) (1,597) 

(5,257) Financing Activities (Note 17) (5,290) 

4,240 Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 55 

(4,284) Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period (44) 

(44) Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period (Note 11)           11  
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1. General Principles 

1.1 The Statement of Accounts summarises the Authority’s transactions for the 2016/17 

financial year and its position at the year-end on 31 March 2017. The Authority is 

required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit 

(England) Regulations 2015, which those Regulations require to be prepared in 

accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the 

Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17 

supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The accounting 

convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified 

by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 

2. Accruals of Income and Expenditure  

1.1 The Accounts have been prepared on the normal accruals basis whereby activity is 

accounted for in the year that it takes place, not when cash payments are made or 

received. Debtors and creditors are included in the balance sheet in respect of goods 

supplied and services rendered but not yet paid for at 31 March 2017. 

1.2 When debts may not be settled, the balance of the debtor is written down and a charge 

made to revenue for the income that might not be recovered. 

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

1.1 Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable 

without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. 

1.2 Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that having originally been invested for 

no longer than three months are repayable on demand or readily convertible to known 

amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. In the Cash Flow Statement, 

cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on 

demand and form an integral part of the Authority’s cash management. 

4. Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and 

Errors 

1.1 Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to 

correct a material error.  

1.2 Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and 

future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 

1.3 Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting 

practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect 

of transactions, other events and conditions on the Authority’s financial position or 

financial performance. 

1.4 Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by 

adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new 

policy had always been applied. Material errors discovered in prior period figures are 

corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances and comparative amounts for 

the prior period. 

 

5. Charges to Revenue for Non-current Assets 

1.1 The Authority’s accounts are charged with the following amounts to record the cost of 

holding non-current assets during the year: 

 depreciation attributable to the assets used by the service; 
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 revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are 

no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be 

written off; 

 amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service. 

1.2 The Authority is not required to raise a levy to fund depreciation, revaluation and 

impairment losses or amortisation. However, it is required to make an annual 

contribution from revenue towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement. 

This is equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Authority in 

accordance with statutory guidance.  

1.3 Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation are therefore 

replaced by a contribution in the Revenue Reserve called the Minimum Revenue 

Provision (MRP), by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment 

Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  

6. Employee benefits 

Benefits Payable during Employment 

1.1 Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-

end. They include benefits such as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick 

leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits for current employees and are recognised as 

an expense for services in the year in which employees render service to the Authority. 

An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. time 

off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees 

can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the wage and 

salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in which the 

employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision 

of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so 

that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday 

absence occurs. 

Termination Benefits 

1.2 Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Authority to 

terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s 

decision to accept voluntary redundancy. The benefits are charged on an accruals basis 

to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the Authority is 

demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment of an officer or group of 

officers and can no longer withdraw the offer or when the authority recognises costs for 

restructuring. 

1.3 Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions 

require the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to be charged with the 

amount payable by the Authority to the Pension Fund or pensioner in the year, not the 

amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in 

Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to 

remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits 

and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the Pension Fund and pensioners and 

any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. 

7. Pension Provision 

1.1 As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Authority offers 

retirement benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees 

retire, the Authority has a commitment to make the payments that need to be disclosed 

at the time that employees earn their future entitlement. 
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1.2 The Authority participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 

administered by the London Pension Funds Authority (LPFA). This is a funded defined 

benefit scheme. 

1.3 Employees' and employers’ contributions are paid into the LGPS. Employers’ 

contribution rates are advised by the LPFA Fund's Actuary, Barnett Waddingham LLP, 

with the intention of balancing the pension liabilities with investment assets over time. 

Additional pension liabilities resulting from early retirements are met by the Authority's 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and not by the Pension Fund. The 

Authority is required to account for pension costs in accordance with IAS 19 and to 

recognise in the accounts accrued benefits payments at the time that the employees 

earn their future benefit entitlements.  

1.4 This has the following effect on the results of the current and prior period: 

 The overall amount to be met from the levy has remained unchanged, but the 

costs disclosed for services after the replacement of actual employer’s 

contributions by current service costs are £10,000 lower (£5,000 lower in 

2015/16). 

 Pension costs have increased to £54,000. This is the result of pension interest 

costs being higher than expected returns on assets. 

 The liability in the balance sheet has increased and is now £1,663,000 

(£1,494,000 in 2015/16). 

 An actuarial loss of £125,000 (£92,000 gain in 2015/16) is recorded on the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and reflected in the Balance 

Sheet liability. Actuarial gains and losses arise from changes to assumptions and 

the differences between expected and actual returns. Further details are shown 

in Note 26. 

8. Discretionary Benefits 

1.1 The Authority also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement 

benefits in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of 

an award to any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the 

award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local 

Government Pension Scheme. 

9. Financial Instruments 

1.1 Financial Instruments represent transactions, with a contract, which result in a financial 

asset for one entity and a financial liability for another. Financial Instruments cover 

both financial liabilities and assets. 

Financial Liabilities 

1.2 Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a 

party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured 

at fair value and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing 

and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the 

liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The effective 

interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the 

life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised. 

1.3 For most of the borrowings that the Authority has, this means that the amount 

presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued 

interest); and interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement is the amount payable for the year according to the loan agreement. 
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1.4 Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and 

debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year of 

repurchase/settlement. However, where repurchase has taken place as part of a 

restructuring of the loan portfolio that involves the modification or exchange of existing 

instruments, the premium or discount is respectively deducted from or added to the 

amortised cost of the new or modified loan and the write-down to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement is spread over the life of the loan by an adjustment 

to the effective interest rate. 

1.5 Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement, regulations allow the impact on the Revenue Reserve Balance 

to be spread over future years. The Authority has a policy of spreading the gain or loss 

over the term that was remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable 

or discount receivable when it was repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the net charge required against 

the Revenue Reserve Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial 

Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

Financial Assets 

1.6 Financial assets are classified into two types:  

 Loans and receivables - assets that have a fixed or determinable payment, but 

are not quoted in an active market. 

 Available for Sale Assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not 

have fixed or determinable payments. 

10. Loans and Receivables 

1.1 Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority 

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially 

measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. 

Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on 

the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the 

instrument. For most of the loans that the Authority has made, this means that the 

amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus 

accrued interest) and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 

1.2 Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past 

event that payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down 

and a charge made to the relevant service (for receivables specific to that service) or 

the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement. The impairment loss is measured as the difference 

between the carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows 

discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. 

1.3 Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are credited or debited 

to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement. 

11. Government Grants and Contributions 

1.1 Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, Government Grants and third 

party contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Authority when there is 

reasonable assurance that: 

 The Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 
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 The grants or contributions will be received. 

1.2 Amounts recognised as due to the council are not credited to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or 

contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future 

economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or 

contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future 

economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. 

1.3 Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been 

satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, 

the grant or contribution is credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement. 

12. Interests in Companies and Other Entities 

1.1 The Authority annually reviews the extent to which other entities (in which the 

Authority has a material interest) need to be consolidated into Group Accounts. In 

consolidating the accounts, all transactions and balances between the Authority and the 

subsidiary would be eliminated in full. 

1.2 In accordance with IAS 24 local authorities are required to prepare a full set of group 

Statement of Accounts where they have material interests in subsidiaries, associates 

and joint ventures. This also includes consideration of interests in other statutory 

bodies.  The Authority does have a financial relationship with some bodies and this is 

explained in Note 22 to the Accounts. 

13. Leases 

1.1 Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer 

substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or 

equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating 

leases. Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements 

are considered separately for classification. Arrangements that do not have the legal 

status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return for payment are accounted 

for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of 

specific assets. 

The Authority as Lessee 

Finance Leases 

1.2 Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance 

Sheet at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s 

inception (or the present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset 

recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct 

costs of the Authority are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on 

entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are 

charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 

1.3 Lease payments are apportioned between: 

 A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment – 

applied to write down the lease liability, and 

 A finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and 

Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement). 

1.4 Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using 

the policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over 

the lease term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership 

of the asset does not transfer to the Authority at the end of the lease period). 
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1.5 A prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds towards the deemed capital 

investment in accordance with statutory requirements. Depreciation and revaluation 

and impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue contribution in the 

Revenue Reserve Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital 

Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between 

the two. 

Operating Leases 

1.6 Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased 

property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of 

the lease, unless another systematic basis is more representative of the benefits 

received by the Authority. 

The Authority as Lessor 

Finance Leases 

1.7 Where the Authority grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or 

equipment, the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the 

commencement of the lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet 

(whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to Net 

Operating Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as 

part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain, representing the Authority’s net investment 

in the lease, is credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the 

carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease (long-term 

debtor) asset in the Balance Sheet. 

1.8 Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between: 

 A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property – applied to write 

down the lease debtor (together with any premiums received), and 

 Finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and 

Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement). 

1.9 The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal 

is not permitted by statute to increase the Revenue Reserve Balance and is required to 

be treated as a capital receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out 

of the Revenue Reserve Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in 

Reserves Statement. Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be 

settled by the payment of rentals in future financial years, this is posted out of the 

Revenue Reserve Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in 

Reserves Statement. When the future rentals are received, the element for the capital 

receipt for the disposal of the asset is used to write down the lease debtor. At this 

point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.  

1.10 The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against the Levy, as the cost of non-

current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. 

Amounts are therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the 

Revenue Reserve Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

Operating Leases 

1.11 Where the Authority grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or 

equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to Net 

Operating Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not 

match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of 
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the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added 

to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease 

term on the same basis as rental income. 

14. Property, Plant and Equipment 

Recognition 

1.1 All expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of non-current assets is 

capitalised on an accruals basis in the accounts. Expenditure on fixed assets is 

capitalised provided that the fixed asset yields benefits to the Authority and the service 

it provides for a period of more than one year. This excludes expenditure on routine 

repairs and maintenance of non-current assets which is charged direct to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  

1.2 Under the adaptation to International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee 

(IFRIC) 12, a PFI asset should initially be recorded as both an asset and liability at the 

present value of the minimum lease payments, which is equal to the cost of the assets 

constructed in a PFI scheme. 

Measurement 

1.3 Fixed assets related to the PFI Scheme were revalued on 31st March 2015 by Wilks 

Head & Eve LLP, Chartered Surveyors, who are independent external RICS registered 

valuers. The Valuation was prepared in accordance with the Red Book UK Appendix 5, 

Valuation of Local Authority Assets. Due to the specialised nature of the asset, the 

revaluation was carried out using both the Depreciated Replacement Cost and Existing 

Use Value methodologies in order to determine the fair value.  Fixed assets are 

classified into the groupings required by the 2016-17 Code of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting and are included in the balance sheet at fair value. 

1.4 Fixed assets are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that their carrying value is not 

materially different from fair value but as a minimum are revalued every five years. 

1.5 Properties regarded by the Authority as non-operational have been valued on the basis 

of surplus assets – which is fair value estimated at highest and best use from a market 

participant’s perspective i.e. open market value. 

1.6 Any surpluses arising from movements in the general level of prices will be credited to 

the Revaluation Reserve. Any deficit will be debited to the Revaluation Reserve where a 

credit balance exists for that specific asset, otherwise the debit will be reflected in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and reversed out in the Statement 

of the Movement on the Revenue Reserve Balance.  

Impairment 

1.7 Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an 

asset may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are 

estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where 

this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for 

the shortfall. Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 

1.8 Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, 

the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the 

amount of the accumulated gains) 

1.9 Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the 

carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

1.10 Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original 
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loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been 

recognised. 

15. Depreciation 

1.1 Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the 

systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception 

is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain 

Community Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under 

construction).  

 Operational assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of 

the asset as estimated by the valuer. 

 Newly acquired assets are not depreciated until the following year. 

 Depreciation is provided on assets in the year of disposal. 

1.2 Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components whose cost is 

significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated 

separately. 

1.3 Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between 

current depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been 

chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the 

Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 

16. Component Accounting 

1.1 The Code requires that each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment with a 

cost that is significant in relation to the total asset cost is depreciated separately. A 

significant part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment may have a useful life and 

a depreciation method that are the same as the useful life and the depreciation method 

of another significant part of that same item. Such parts may be grouped in 

determining the depreciation charge. 

1.2 The following asset classes will not be considered for componentisation: 

 Equipment – as considered immaterial; 

 Infrastructure; 

 Asset classes that are not depreciated – such as land, investment property, 

surplus assets, community assets and assets held for sale. 

1.3 The principal asset that the Authority holds on its balance sheet relates to its PFI asset. 

This was revalued 31 March 2015 and can be broken down into six individual sites. 

1.4 For component depreciation the Authority will only consider sites:  

 with a cost or fair value above 3.5% of the total pfi asset;  

 and then will only separate components with a cost or fair value of more than 

20% of the individual asset;  

1.5 The six sites that make up the PFI are: 

 Jenkins Lane Bio Mrf, Mrf and RRC Site (Beckton)         

 Frog Island Bio Mrf and Mrf (Rainham)    

 Frizlands Lane RRC Site (Dagenham)       

 Gerpins Lane RRC Site (Havering)         

 Chigwell Road RRC Site (Woodford) 
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 Ilford Recycling Centre (Ilford) 

17. Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and Similar Contracts 

1.1 PFI and similar contracts are agreements to receive services, where the responsibility 

for making available the property, plant and equipment needed to provide the services 

passes to the PFI contractor. As the Authority is deemed to control the services that are 

provided under its PFI schemes, and as ownership of the property, plant and equipment 

will pass to the Authority at the end of the contracts for no additional charge, the 

Authority carries the assets used under the contracts on its Balance Sheet as part of 

Property, Plant and Equipment. 

1.2 In December 2002, the Authority entered into a PFI contract.    

1.3 In accordance with IFRIC 12, all PFI arrangements have been reflected on the 

Authority’s balance sheet. The financial liability has been recognised as per the finance 

lease principles under International Accounting Standard (IAS) 17. 

1.4 The fixed assets associated with the contract have been recognised in the Authority’s 

balance sheet at fair value, and the assets will be revalued and depreciated in line with 

the Authority’s policies for the accounting of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

1.5 The annual amounts payable to the PFI operator are analysed into five elements: 

 The fair value of services received during the year, which is charged to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 An interest charge of 5.99% reflecting the implicit rate of interest on the finance 

lease on the outstanding balance sheet liability, which is charged to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 Contingent rent, which relates to any increase in the amount to be paid for 

property arising during the contract. This is then debited to the Financing and 

Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement. 

 The payment towards the liability, which writes down the liability towards the PFI 

operator in the Balance Sheet. (Calculated using the same principles as for a 

finance lease). 

 Lifecycle replacement costs. When appropriate, a proportion of the amounts 

payable is posted to the Balance Sheet as a prepayment and then recognised as 

additions to Property, Plant and Equipment when the relevant works are 

eventually carried out. 

18. Reserves 

1.1 The Authority sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future purposes or to cover 

contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the Revenue 

Reserve Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be 

financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate category in that 

year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then transferred 

back into the Revenue Reserve Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that 

there is no net charge against the Levy for the expenditure. 

1.2 The Revenue Reserve is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of an Authority 

are required to be paid and out of which all liabilities of the Authority are to be met, 

except to the extent that statutory rules might provide otherwise. 

1.3 The strategy Reserve has been set up to meet the costs arising out of the post 2027 

waste disposal arrangements. It will be used for revenue costs including feasibility 
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works relating to site options and appraisals, pre planning work and elements of the 

planning approval process e.g. procurement of design, build and operate contract. 

1.4 A Capital Reserve (Revenue Contribution) exists primarily to enable expenditure to be 

financed without the need to borrow or use capital receipts. 

1.5 The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other 

assets, which are restricted by statute from being used other than to fund new capital 

expenditure or to be set aside to finance historical capital expenditure. The balance on 

the reserve shows the resources that have yet to be applied for these purposes at the 

year-end. 

1.6 The Pension Reserve has been set up as part of the requirement to comply with IAS 19, 

Accounting for Pension Costs. It represents the actuarially calculated deficit between 

the value of all pension liabilities and the assets held by the London Pensions Fund 

Authority (LPFA) as at the 31 March 2017.  The deficit also includes the difference 

between the cost of statutorily required payments to the LPFA and the IAS 19 

accounting cost charged to the Net Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement.  Further information relating to the Net Pension Liability is 

shown in Note 26 to the Accounts. 

1.7 The Capital Adjustment Account is a non-cash backed reserve, which represents 

amounts set aside from revenue resources and capital receipts to finance expenditure 

on fixed assets and also for the repayment of external loans and certain other capital 

financing transactions. 

1.8 From the 1 April 2007, the Authority is required to record unrealised revaluation gains 

and losses arising from holding fixed assets in a designated Revaluation Reserve. The 

reserve is matched by fixed assets within the Balance Sheet and therefore not available 

to finance expenditure. 

1.9 The Accumulated Absences Account reflects untaken leave balances outstanding as at 

the 31 March 2017. 

19. Value Added Tax 

1.1 All expenditure and income figures in the Accounts are stated exclusive of Value Added 

Tax. 

20. Financial Relationship between the Authority and Constituent Councils 

1.1 Many of the Authority’s day to day administrative and support functions during the year 

were run on an agency basis utilising resources from the London Boroughs of Barking & 

Dagenham, Havering, Newham and Redbridge.   

21. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

Provisions 

1.1 Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a legal or 

constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic 

benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 

obligation. For instance, the Authority may be involved in a court case that could 

eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment of compensation. 

1.2 Provisions are charged as an expense to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement in the year that the authority becomes aware of the obligation, and are 

measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to 

settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties. 

1.3 When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the 

Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – 

where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be 

Page 37 of 108



East London Waste Authority 

Statement of Accounts 

For the Year Ended 31 March 2017 

Page 30 of 73 

required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and 

credited back to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

1.4 Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be 

recovered from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as 

income if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the authority 

settles the obligation. 

Contingent Liabilities 

1.5 A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the authority a 

possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or 

otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the authority. 

Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be 

made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the 

amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. 

1.6 Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to 

the accounts. 
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NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 

1. Adoption of Accounting Standards that have been issued but not yet been 

Adopted 

1.1 Under the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 

2016/17 (the code) the Authority is required to disclose information relating to the 

expected impact of an accounting change that will be required by a new accounting 

standard that has been issued but not yet adopted by the code. 

1.2 This applies to the adoption of the following new or amended standards within the 

2017/18 Code: 

 Amendment to the reporting of pension fund scheme transaction costs. This will 

be a presentational change to the notes of the pension fund.   

 Amendment to the reporting of investment concentration. This will be a 

presentational change to the notes of the pension fund.   

 IAS 7 Statement of Cash flows – improved disclosures about liabilities from 

financing activities 

 IAS 12 Income Taxes – Recognition of Deferred taxes for Unrealised Losses. This 

has no impact on the Authority. 

2. Critical Judgements in applying Accounting Policies 

1.1 In applying the accounting policies set out in the Statement of Accounting Policies 

section of the Statement of Accounts, the Authority has had to make certain judgments 

about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. The only 

critical judgement made in the Statement of Accounts is as follows. 

1.2 There is a degree of uncertainty about future levels of Government funding for Local 

Government. The Authority is funded by a levy on the four Constituent Boroughs. The 

agreements in place with the Constituent Boroughs stipulate payment of the levy. 

However, the Constituent Boroughs are subject to pressures that will impose 

constraints on future levy increases. This in turn limits the Authority’s capacity to 

increase the Levy to fund its commitments. 

3. Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation 

uncertainty  

1.1 The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions 

made by the Authority about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are 

made taking into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant 

factors. However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results 

could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates. 

1.2 The items in the Authority’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2017 for which there is 

significant risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows: 
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Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results differ from 

assumptions  

Private 

Finance 

Initiative 

The PFI contract costs are based on 

estimation over a period of 25 years.  

The assumptions made at the beginning 

of the contract will be subject to 

unknown future change.  

The write down of the PFI liability in the 

balance sheet is based upon a capital 

model calculated at the start of the 

contract and is not affected by annual 

fluctuation. Therefore any increase or 

decrease in the actual cost of the 

service for each year will impact on the 

comprehensive income and expenditure 

account and revenue reserve. 

Pensions Estimation of the net liability to pay 

pensions depends on a number of 

complex judgements relating to the 

discount rate used, the rate at which 

salaries are projected to increase, 

changes in retirement ages, mortality 

rates and expected returns on pension 

fund assets. A consulting actuary is 

engaged to provide the Authority with 

expert advice about the assumptions to 

be applied. 

The effects on the present value of the 

pension’s total obligation can be 

measured. For instance a 0.1% 

decrease in the discount rate 

assumption would result in the total 

obligation increasing by £70,000. 

However, the assumptions interact in 

complex ways. The Authority’s actuary 

uses their experience to make the 

necessary adjustments accordingly. 

Property, 

Plant and 

Equipment 

Assets are depreciated over useful lives 

that are dependent on assumptions 

about the level of repairs and 

maintenance that will be incurred in 

relation to individual assets.  

If the useful life of assets is reduced, 

depreciation increases and the carrying 

amount of the assets falls. For example, 

based upon current depreciation a one 

year’s reduction in useful life would 

result in an increased depreciation of 

£350,800 per year. 

 

 

4. Events after the Balance Sheet date 

1.1 The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Finance Director on 31 May 

2017.  Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the Statement of Accounts 

or notes. Where events taking place before this date provide information about 

conditions existing at 31 March 2017, the figures in the Statement of Accounts and 

notes have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact of this 

information. 

1.2 There are no events after the balance sheet date that require an adjustment to be 

made to the Statement of Accounts. 

 

5. Adjustment between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations  

1.1 This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and 

expenditure recognised by the Authority in the year in accordance with proper 

accounting practice in order to calculate the resources that are specified by statutory 

provisions as being available to the Authority to meet future capital and revenue 

expenditure. 
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1.2 For descriptions of the reserves refer to item 18 on page 29-30. 

 

2016/17 

 Reserves 

 

Revenue 
Reserve 

Balance  

Capital 
Reserve 

(RCCO) 

Capital 
Receipts 

Reserve 
Strategy 
Reserve 

Movement 
in 

Unusable 

Reserves 

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources: £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are 

different from revenue for the year calculated in accordance 

with statutory requirements: 

     

Pensions costs transferred to (or from) the Pensions Reserve ( see note 

26.3 ) 
(44) - -  44 

Holiday pay - transferred to the Accumulated Absences (3) - -  3 

Total adjustments to the Revenue Resources (47) - -  47 

Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources:  -    

Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer 

from the Capital Adjustment Account) 
58 - -  (58) 

Reversal of Charges for depreciation and impairment of PFI non-current 

assets 

(transfer to/from the Capital Adjustment Account) 

(5,858) - -  5,858 

Statutory provision for the financing of PFI capital investment 

(transfer to/from the Capital Adjustment Account) 
6,196 - -  (6,196) 

Reversal of PFI deferred income credit (transfer to/from CAA) 123 - -  (123) 

Use of capital receipt to fund capital expenditure (115) - 115  - 

Total adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources 404 - 115  (519) 

Other adjustments between Reserves      

Contribution to Strategy Reserve 985 300 - (1,285) - 

Reversal of Previous year’s Accumulated absence 5 - - - (5) 

Total adjustments between Reserves 990 300 - (1,285) (5) 

Total Adjustments as shown in Movement in Reserves 

Statement 
1,347 300 115 (1,285) (477) 
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2015/16 Comparative Figures 

 Reserves 

 

Revenue 
Reserve 

Balance  

Capital 
Receipts 

Reserve 

Movement 
in 

Unusable 

Reserves 

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources: £000 £000 £000 

Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement are different from revenue for the year calculated in 

accordance with statutory requirements: 

   

Pensions costs transferred to (or from) the Pensions Reserve ( see note 26.3 ) (47) - 47 

Holiday pay - transferred to the Accumulated Absences (4) - 4 

Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit 

on the Provision of Services in relation to capital 

expenditure (these items are charged to the Capital 

Adjustment Account) 

(110) - 110 

Total adjustments to the Revenue Resources (161) - 161 

Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources:    

Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from revenue to the Capital Receipts Reserve 115 (115) - 

Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer 

from the Capital Adjustment Account) 
61 - (61) 

Reversal of Charges for depreciation and impairment of PFI non-current assets 

(transfer to/from the Capital Adjustment Account) 
(5,646) - 5,646 

Statutory provision for the financing of PFI capital investment 

(transfer to/from the Capital Adjustment Account) 
7,051 - (7,051) 

Total adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources 1,581 (115) (1,466) 

Total Adjustments as shown in Movement in Reserves Statement 1,420 (115) (1,305) 

 

6. Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 

1.1 This note sets out the amounts set aside from the Revenue Reserve balances in 

earmarked reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans and the amounts 

posted back from earmarked reserves to meet Revenue Reserve expenditure in 

2016/17. 

 

 

 

Balance at 

1 April 

2015 

£000 

Transfers 

Out 

2015/16 

£000 

Transfers 

in 

2015/16 

£000 

Balance at 

31 March 

2016 

£000 

Transfers 

Out 

2016/17 

£000 

Transfers 

in 

2016/17 

£000 

Balance at 

31 March 

2017 

£000 

Revenue Reserve:        

Strategy Reserve - - - - - (1,285) (1,285) 

Capital Reserve (RCCO) (400) - - (400) 300 0 (100) 

Capital Receipts - - (115) (115) 115 - - 

Total (400) - (115) (515) 415 (1,285) (1,385) 
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7. Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 

2015/16 

£000 
 

2016/17 

£000 

4,977 Interest payable and similar charges 4,661 

52 Pensions interest cost and expected return on pensions assets 54 

(37) Impairment of Investment charged / (recovered)  - 

2,464 Contingent Rent 3,972 

(80) Interest receivable and similar income (32) 

7,376 Total  8,655 

 

8. Property, Plant and Equipment  

comprehensive Movements on Balances 

 

Movements in 2016/17: 

 

 
Land and 

Buildings  

£000 

Vehicles, Plant, 

Furniture and 

Equipment 

£000 

Total Property, 

Plant and 

Equipment 

£000 

PFI Assets 

included in 

Property, Plant 
and Equipment  

£000 

Cost or Valuation     

At 1 April 2016 41,642 66,612 108,254 107,962 

Additions – Life Cycle 197 709 906 906 

Additions – Life Cycle (in advance) - 165 165 165 

Additions – Leased Assets - 2700 2700 2700 

Additions – New Asset - 52 52 - 

Revaluation Increase recognised in the Revaluation 

Reserve – Landfill Sites 
115 - 115 - 

At 31 March 2017 41,954 70,238 112,192 111,733 

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment      

At 1 April 2016 1,773 3,873 5,646 5,646 

Depreciation charge  1,786 4,072 5,858 5,858 

At 31 March 2017 3,559 7,945 11,504 11,504 

Net Book Value     

At 31 March 2016 39,869 62,739 102,608 102,316 

At 31 March 2017 38,395 62,293 100,688 100,229 
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Comparative Movements in 2015/16: 

 

Additions and Revaluations 

1.1 Additions relate to PFI Life Cycle Costs and PFI assets leased for no additional cost for 

the duration of the contract (See Note 25). 

1.2 The Authority carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and 

Equipment required to be measured at fair value is revalued sufficiently regularly and at 

least every five years. All valuations are carried out by qualified external valuers. In 

estimating fair value, regard has been had to the nature of the asset and its use, 

location and size. 

1.3 The PFI asset was revalued as at 31st March 2015. Due to the specialised nature of the 

asset, the revaluation was carried out using both the Depreciated Replacement Cost 

and Existing Use Value methodologies in order to determine the fair value.  

Depreciation  

1.4 Depreciation has been calculated on a straight-line basis based on a remaining useful 

life. 

1.5 From the 1st April 2015, the Authority’s assets are assessed as per the Authority’s 

component accounting policy. (See page 27) 

 

Non-operational Property, Plant and Equipment (Surplus Assets) 

1.6 The Authority does not have material surplus assets. 

1.7 During 2015/16, Hall Farm landfill site was sold. The fair value of the asset was 

removed from the accounts. 

1.8 In 16/17, the Authority purchased a flare for the Aveley Landfill site for £52,000. 

1.9 The Authority has 3 landfill sites. As at 31 March 2017 two of the sites were revalued 

resulting in a value increase of £115,000. 

1.10 The total fair value of the Landfill sites as at 31 March 2017 is now £459,000. The next 

valuation is due in 2018. 

 
Land and 

Buildings  

£000 

Vehicles, Plant, 
Furniture and 

Equipment 

£000 

Total Property, 
Plant and 

Equipment 

£000 

PFI Assets 

included in 

Property, Plant 

and Equipment  

£000 

Cost or Valuation     

At 1 April 2015 41,532 65,038 106,570 106,168 

Additions – Life Cycle costs 221 1,574 1,795 1,795 

De-recognition - disposals (110) - (110) - 

Rounding adjustment (1) - (1) (1) 

At 31 March 2016 41,642 66,612 108,254 107,962 

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment      

At 1 April 2015 - - - - 

Depreciation charge  1,773 3,873 5,646 5,646 

At 31 March 2016 1,773 3,873 5,646 5,646 

Net Book Value     

At 31 March 2015 41,532 65,038 106,570 106,168 

At 31 March 2016 39,869 62,739 102,608 102,316 
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Fixed Assets Fair Value Annual Comparison 

 

Land and Buildings 

£000 

Vehicles, Plant, 

Furniture and 

Equipment 

£000 

Total 

£000 

Carried at historical cost 86,584 10,976 97,560 

    

Valued at fair value as at:    

31 March 2013 70,258  13,504  83,762  

31 March 2014 65,352  16,108  81,460  

31 March 2015 41,532  65,038  106,570  
31 March 2016 39,870  62,739  102,609  

31 March 2017 38,395  62,293  100,688  

Total Cost or Valuation  38,395  62,293  100,688  

 

9. Investments 

1.1 The Authority owns 1,500,000 £1 shares partly paid (0.1p per share) in Aveley Methane 

Limited, whose principal activity is the utilisation of landfill gas including electricity 

generation under the Government’s Non Fossil Fuel Obligation. Aveley Methane Limited 

is regarded by the Authority as an authorised company for the purposes of the Local 

Authority (Companies) Order 1995. The investment was transferred at nil value to the 

Authority as successor to the Greater London Council.  This shareholding represents a 

holding of almost 50% of the total share capital of Aveley Methane Limited and the 

Authority would be required to meet any request for uncalled share capital that Aveley 

Methane Limited might make. The Authority’s interest in Aveley Methane Limited is an 

important part of the management of its closed landfill site at Aveley 1. 

1.2 During 2016/17 the Infinis Energy Group which had owned 50% of the Company's 

issued share capital through Novera Energy Generation No. 1 Limited sold Infinis plc 

which includes Novera to 3i Infrastructure plc. 

1.3 The estimated net liabilities of Aveley Methane as at 31st March 2017 are £538,000 

(2015/16: £463,000 post audit) and estimated profit before tax for the year of £49,000 

(2015/16: £45,000 profit – post audit). The figures are based on the unaudited Draft 

Statement of Accounts. 

1.4 Copies of the Statement of Accounts of Aveley Methane Limited can be obtained from 

Infinis, 1st Floor, 500 Pavillion Drive, Northampton Business Park, Northampton NN4 

7YJ. 

1.5 The Authority previously owned 100% of the share capital of ELWA Limited, its Local 

Authority Waste Disposal Company (LAWDC). On 23rd December 2002, as part of the 

IWMS/PFI Contract, the Authority transferred all of its equity shareholding to Shanks 

Waste Management Limited through their holding company ELWA Holdings Limited.  

1.6 Following the transfer, the Authority owns 19 Class ‘A’ non-equity, voting shares in 

ELWA Limited with a nominal value of £0.01p each. ELWA Limited commenced trading 

on 24th December 2002 and its principal activity is the operation of waste disposal 

services for ELWA. The net assets of ELWA Limited as at 31 March 2016 were 

£11,107,000 (2014/15: Net assets £7,510,000). The profit after taxation for the year 

ended 31 March 2016 was £2,946,000 (2014/15: Loss after taxation £2,401,000). The 

2016/17 accounts will be available in July 2017.  

1.7 During 2010/11, Shanks Waste Management Limited sold 80% of its equity 

shareholding in ELWA Holdings Limited to the John Laing Group. 

1.8 On 28 February 2017 Shanks Group plc merged with Van Gansewinkel Groep BV to 

form Renewi plc. 
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1.9 Copies of the Statement of Accounts of ELWA Limited can be obtained from Renewi plc, 

Dunedin House, Auckland Park, Mount Farm, Milton Keynes MK1 1BU.  

1.10 In the opinion of the Directors, the investments in Aveley Methane Limited and ELWA 

Limited are not material interests for the purposes of Group Accounts as defined in the 

Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting (2016/17) and therefore, there is no 

requirement to produce Group Accounts.  

1.11 Cash investments are managed by the London Borough of Redbridge and held in cash 

deposits on behalf of the Authority in accordance with the Authority’s Treasury 

Management Strategy. Note 30 shows further details.  

 

10. Short Term Debtors 

  31 March 2016 

£000 

31 March 2017 

£000 

Central Government Bodies 995 1,389 

Other Local Authorities 621 929 

Other entities and individuals 11 46 

Total 1,627 2,364 

 

11. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

1.1 The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements: 

 31 March 2016 

£000 

31 March 2017 

£000 

Bank current accounts (157) - 

Short term deposits  113 11 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents (44)   11 

 

12. Short Term Creditors 

 31 March 2016 

£000 

31 March 2017 

£000 

Central Government Bodies 3 3 

Other Local Authorities 176 118 

Other entities and individuals 6,316 5,721 

Total 6,495 5,842 

 

13. Usable Reserves 

1.1 Movements in the Authority’s usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in Reserves 

Statement, with further analysis in notes 5 and 6. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 46 of 108



East London Waste Authority 

Statement of Accounts 

For the Year Ended 31 March 2017 

Page 39 of 73 

14. Unusable Reserves 

 

31 March 2016 

£000 

 31 March 2017 

£000 

(33,061) Revaluation Reserve (32,521) 

9,633 Capital Adjustment Account 8,459 

1,494 Pensions Reserve 1,663 

5 Accumulated Absences Account 3 

(21,929) Total Unusable Reserves  (22,396) 

 

 

Revaluation Reserve 

1.1 The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arising from 

increases in the value of its Property, Plant and Equipment. The balance is reduced 

when assets with accumulated gains are: 

 Revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost; 

 Used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through 

depreciation, or  

 Disposed of and the gains are realised. 

1.2 The Reserve was created in 2009/10 and contains revaluation gains accumulated since 

1 April 2007. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the 

balance on the Capital Adjustment Account. 

 

 

 

 

Capital Adjustment Account  

1.3 The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing difference arising from the different 

arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for 

financing the acquisitions, construction or additions to those assets under statutory 

provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or 

subsequent costs as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to 

the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from 

the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis). The 

Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Authority as finance for the costs 

of acquisition, construction and subsequent costs. In the early years of the PFI, the 

capital element of the Unitary Charge, which dictates the MRP charge, is less than the 

2015/16 

£000 

 2016/17 

£000 

(33,614) Balance at 1 April (33,061) 

- 
Upward revaluation of non-current assets not posted to the Provision 
of Services 

(115) 

443 
Difference between fair value depreciation and 

historical cost depreciation written off to Capital Adjustment Account 
655 

110 
Accumulated gains on assets sold  written off to Capital Adjustment 
Account 

- 

(33,061) Balance at 31 March (32,521) 
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depreciation on the assets. This will even out over the life of the PFI. However, the 

Capital Adjustment Account shows a debit balance at this point in the PFI contract term. 

 

 

Pension Reserve 

1.4 The Pension Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different 

arrangements for accounting for post employment benefits and for funding benefits in 

accordance with statutory provisions. The Authority accounts for post employment 

benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are 

earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to 

reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set 

aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be 

financed as the Authority makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or 

eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on 

the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by 

past and current employees and the resources the Authority has set aside to meet 

them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by 

the time the benefits come to be paid. 

 

2015/16 

£000 
 

2016/17 

£000 

1,539 Balance at 1 April  1,494 

(92) Actuarial losses/(gains) on  pensions assets and liabilities 125 

47 
Employer’s pension contributions and direct payments payable in the 

year 
44 

1,494 Balance at 31 March 1,663 

 

 

Accumulated Absences Account 

1.5 The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise 

in the Revenue Reserve Balance from accruing for compensated absence earned but not 

taken in the year, e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March. Statutory 

arrangements require that the impact on the Revenue Reserve Balance is neutralised by 

transfers to or from the Account.  

 

2015/16 

£000 

 2016/17 

£000 

11,542 Balance at 1 April 9,633 

5,646 
Reversal of Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current 
assets 

5,858 

(7,051) Statutory provision for the financing of PFI capital investment (6,196) 

(61) Statutory provision for the repayment of debt  (58) 

(443) 

Difference between fair value depreciation and 

historical cost depreciation written out of the Revaluation 

Reserve 

(655) 

- PFI Leased Asset deferred credit released to CI&E (123) 

(110) 
Accumulated gains on sold non-current asset transferred from 
Revaluation Reserve to be written off 

- 

110 
Non-current asset written off on sale as part of the gain on disposal to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

- 

9,633 Balance at 31 March 8,459 
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2015/16 

£000 

 2016/17 

£000 

1 Balance at 1 April 5 

(1) Reversal of Previous Years accrual (5) 

5 

Amounts accrued at the end of the current year by which officer 

remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement on an accrual basis is different from remuneration 

chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements 

3 

5 Balance at 31 March 3 

 

15. Cash Flow Statement – Operating Activities 

1.1 The cash flows for operating activities include the following items: 

2015/16 

£000 

 2016/17 

£000 

 
The cash flows for operating activities include the following 

items 
 

80 Interest Received 32 

(4,977) Interest Paid (4,661) 

(4,897) Net Interest (4,629) 

 

1.2 Cash Flow for Operating Activities: 

 

2015/16 

£000 

 2016/17 

£000 

246 Net Surplus on the Provision of Services 2,554 

 
Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of 

services for the following non cash movements 
 

5,646 Depreciation 5,858 

699 Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors (653) 

841 (Increase)/Decrease in Debtors (737) 

47 Actuarial adjustments on pension assets/liabilities 44 

- Increase in Provisions - 

1 Other non-cash adjustments (123) 

0 Adjustment for rounding (1) 

7,234  4,388 

7,480 Net cash flows from operating activities 6,942 

 

16. Cash Flow Statement – Investing Activities 

2015/16 

£000 

 2016/17 

£000 

(1,795) Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,122) 

110 Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 

3,702 Net movement in short-term investments (475) 

2,017 Net cash flows from investing activities (1,597) 

 

17. Cash Flow Statement – Financing Activities 

2015/16 

£000 

 2016/17 

£000 

(5,257) 
Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liabilities 

relating to the finance leases on balance sheet PFI contracts 
(5,290) 

(5,257) Net cash flows from financing activities (5,290) 
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18. Note to the Expenditure And Funding Analysis 

1.1 This note provides a reconciliation of the main adjustments to Net Expenditure 

Chargeable to the Revenue Reserve Balance to arrive at the amounts in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

1.2 The relevant transfers between reserves are explained in the Movement in Reserves 

Statement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adjustments Between Funding and Accounting Basis 2016/17 

Adjustments from Revenue Reserve 

to arrive at the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement 

amounts 

Adjustments for 

Capital Purposes 

£000 

Net change for 

the Pensions 

Adjustments 

£000 

Other Differences 

£000 

Total 

Adjustments 

£000 

Supplies and Support Services including 

Contingency Expenditure 
- - 999 999 

Contractor Service Charge (Note 25) (14,707) - (999) (15,706) 

Employee Costs  - (10) 3 (7) 

Depreciation and Impairment of Fixed 

Assets (Note 8) 
5,858 - - 5,858 

Third Party Payments - - 70 70 

PFI and other Grants (Note 21) - - (70) (70) 

Cost of Services (8,849) (10) 3 (8,856) 

Capital Financing Costs (180) - - (180) 

Bank Interest Receivable - - 32 32 

Financing and investment income and 

Expenditure (Note 7) 
8,633 54 (32) 8,655 

PFI Deferred Income released (123) - - (123) 

(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of 
Services 

(519) 44 3 (472) 

Accumulated Absence 15/16 reversal - - (5) (5) 

Difference between Usable Reserve 

(Surplus) or Deficit and 

Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement Surplus or 

Deficit on the Provision of Services 

(519) 44 (2) (477) 
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Comparative Adjustments in 2015/16: 

Adjustments for Capital Purposes 

1.3 This column includes PFI adjustments for contingent rent, interest, capital and lifecycle 

costs (see note 25) as well as depreciation and impairment, and for: 

 Capital disposals with a transfer of income on disposal of assets and the amounts 

written off for those assets. 

 Financing and investment income and expenditure – the statutory charges for 

capital financing i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue 

contributions are deducted from other income and expenditure as these are not 

chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices. 

 Capital Receipts used to fund capital expenditure and deferred income released 

relating to the use of PFI contractor leased assets. 

Net Change for the Pensions Adjustments 

1.4 Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS 19 

Employee  Benefits pension related expenditure and income: 

Adjustments Between Funding and Accounting Basis 2015/16 

Adjustments from Revenue Reserve 

to arrive at the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement 

amounts 

Adjustments for 

Capital Purposes 

£000 

Net change for 
the Pensions 

Adjustments 

£000 

Other Differences 

£000 

Total 

Adjustments 

£000 

Supplies and Support Services including 

Contingency Expenditure 
- - 984 984 

Contractor Service Charge (Note 25) (14370) - (985) (15,355) 

Employee Costs  - (5) 5 - 

Depreciation and Impairment of Fixed 
Assets (Note 8) 

5,646 - - 5,646 

Third Party Payments - - 17 17 

PFI and other Grants (Note 21) - - (17) (17) 

Efficiencies & Other Income - - 440 440 

Cost of Services (8,724) (5) 444 (8,285) 

Capital Financing Costs (183) - - (183) 

Bank Interest Receivable - - 80 80 

Financing and investment income and 

Expenditure (Note 7) 
7,404 52 (80) 7,376 

(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of 

Services 
(1,503) 47 444 (1,012) 

Asset Disposal 110   110 

Efficiency recognised in 14/15 reserves - - (440) (440) 

Investment impairment recovered 37 - - 37 

Difference between Usable Reserve 

Surplus or Deficit and Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement 

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 

Services 

(1,356) 47 4 (1,305) 
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 For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions 

made by the authority as allowed by statute and the replacement with current 

service costs and past service costs. 

 For Financing and investment income and expenditure – the net interest on the 

defined benefit liability is charged to the CIES. 

Other Differences 

1.5 Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement and amounts payable/receivable to be recognised under 

statute: 

 Accumulated absences adjustments. 

 Timing differences in funding. 

 Internal movements of non PFI grant to grant income and contractor insurance 

to supplies and services.  

 For Financing and investment income and expenditure - internal movement 

relating to bank interest receivable. 

 

19. Officers’ Remuneration 

1.1 The remuneration paid to the Authority’s senior employees is as follows: 

 

2016/17 

 Remuneration 

£ 

Pension 

Contribution 

£ 

Total 

£ 

    

Managing Director 92,474 15,351 107,825 

 

2015/16 Comparative Figures 

 Remuneration 

£ 

Pension 

Contribution 

£ 

Total 

£ 

    

Acting Managing Director 91,558 15,199 106,757 

 

1.2 The Authority does not directly employ the Finance Director, who is employed by the 

London Borough of Redbridge. The Finance Director was appointed at the Authority’s 

Annual General Meeting on 20 June 2016 and during 2016/17 received an honorarium 

of £3,903 (£5,000 pro rata) for service provided. 

1.3 In addition to the employee’s and employer’s pension contributions deducted in regard 

to each pensionable ELWA employee, the London Pensions Fund Authority (LPFA) levy a 

further charge on employers based on their valuation of the pension fund. This 

additional charge of £30,577 for 2016/17 (2015/16 £29,260) cannot be attributed to 

any particular officer and is declared here for reasons of transparency. 

1.4 The number of employees including Senior Officers whose remuneration, excluding 

employer’s pension contributions, was £50,000 or more were: 
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Remuneration Band 
2015/16 

Number of employees 

2016/17 

Number of employees 

£50,000 - £69,999 - - 

£70,000 - £74,999 - - 

£75,000 - £79,999 - - 

£80,000 - £84,999   

£85,000 - £89,999 - - 

£90,000 - £94,999 1 1 

 1 1 

 

20. External Audit Costs 

1.1 The Authority has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement 

of Accounts and statutory inspections provided by the Authority’s external auditors: 

 2015/16 

£000 

2016/17 

£000 

Fees payable to KPMG LLP with regard to external audit services carried out by 
the appointed auditor for the year – accounts. 

18 18 

   

Total  18 18 

 

21. Grant Income 

1.1 The Authority credited the following grants to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement in 2016/17:  

 2015/16 

£000 

2016/17 

£000 

PFI/Waste Infrastructure Capital Grant (WICG) 3,991 3,991 

WEEE Fund Grant - 40 

L.W.A.R.B Match Recycling Funding - 30 

WRAP Grant 17 - 

Total 4,008 4,061 

 

1.2 For PFI/WICG grant details refer to notes 22.2 and 25.  

1.3 The Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (WEEE) Fund Grant was received from 

the Department for Business, Innovation and skills (BIS). The grant was used to fund a 

project for the repairing of electrical items in the ELWA boroughs. 

1.4 The London Waste And Recycling Board (LWARB) Match Recycling Funding was provided 

for communications relating to Recycle Week 2016. 

1.5 The Waste and Resources Action Programme (WRAP) is a government funded not-for-

profit company. Its objective is to increase recycling by providing advice, support and 

initiatives to businesses, local authorities and the community. The grant received in 

2015/16 provided funding for the Recycle for London (RfL) Launch Campaign 2015. 

22. Related Party Transactions 

1.1 Since the 1st April 1986, ELWA has assumed the statutory responsibility for the disposal 

of waste arising in the area covered by the London Boroughs of Barking & Dagenham, 

Havering, Newham and Redbridge and has an interest in Aveley Methane Limited and 

ELWA Limited. The Members of the Authority have official appointments within their 

respective Constituent Boroughs. 
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1.2 The Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs award the PFI Grant which is 

also known as the Waste Infrastructure Capital Grant. Further details are in Note 25. 

1.3 The Code of Practice requires the disclosure of interests between the Authority and its 

related parties which are not disclosed elsewhere in the Statement of Accounts.  

1.4 The material expenditure and income transactions with these related parties are set out 

below. 

 

 2015/16 2016/17 

 Expenditure 

£000 

Income 

£000 

Expenditure 

£000 

Income 

£000 

Barking & Dagenham 1,090 (10,800)  1,065  (11,787)  

Havering 936 (13,460)  940  (14,131)  

Newham 844           (16,120)  847  (17,291)  

Redbridge 441 (15,507)  504  (16,442)  

Aveley Methane Limited - -  -    -  

ELWA Limited 57,945 (2,905)  59,466  (460)  

 

1.5 Income received from the boroughs relates mainly to the levy raised and charges for 

commercial waste disposal. Expenditure is for tonne mileage costs, recycling initiatives, 

rent payable for property leases and service level agreements for administrative and 

financial services provided. Further details can be found in the Authority’s budget 

monitoring report which forms part of the agenda at the Authority’s statutory meetings. 

Members of the Authority and Chief Officers 

1.6 The following Members and Officers have made declarations of their interest in the 

following organisations, which arise from official Authority Appointments. 

 

Membership of Other Organisations 

         Managing Director, Mark Ash: Director of ELWA Limited & Aveley Methane Plc 

         Councillor Steven Kelly:  Director of ELWA Limited. 

 

23. Operating Leases 

1.1 The Authority has acquired its civic amenity and recycling sites by entering into 

operating leases with the four boroughs. Each lease is to the year 2027 with rent 

reviews taking place every 5 years. The last rent review was during 2012/13 with effect 

from 1 April 2013. Based upon current figures, the minimum lease payments due in 

future years are: 

 2015/16 

£000 

2016/17 

£000 

Up to one year 317 317 

Two to Five Years 1,266 1,266 

Six Years to end of lease 2,216 2,216 

 3,799 3,799 

1.2 The expenditure charged to the Third Party Payment line in the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement during the year in relation to these leases was £305,700 

(2015/16 £316,500). 
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24. Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing 

1.1 Capital expenditure additions of £906,000 relate to PFI Lifecycle costs as referred to in 

note 25.8. This was financed by revenue through the unitary payment. 

1.2 The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below 

(including the value of assets acquired under finance leases and PFI contracts), 

together with the resources that have been used to finance it.  

1.3 Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as 

assets are used by the Authority, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital 

Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically 

by the Authority that has yet to be financed.  

1.4 The CFR is analysed in the second part of this note. 

 2015/16 

£000 

2016/17 

£000 

Opening Capital Financing Requirement 84,496 79,179 

Capital Investment:   

Property, Plant & Equipment 1,795 906 

Sources of Finance:   

Direct Revenue Contributions (1,795) (906) 

Minimum Revenue Provision (5,317) (5,347) 

Closing Capital Financing Requirement 79,179  73,832 

Explanation of movements in year:   

Assets acquired under PFI Contract 1,795 906 

Decrease in underlying need for borrowing (7,112) (6,253) 

Decrease in Capital Financing Requirement (5,317) (5,347) 

25. Private Finance Initiatives and Similar Contracts 

1.1 The IWMS/PFI Contract, which commenced on 24th December 2002, is for 25 years. 

ELWA Limited is implementing a capital investment programme of more than £100 

million in new waste management facilities over the life of the contract. The design, 

building, alteration, financing and operation of the waste management facilities required 

for provision of the IWMS together with any associated risks, will be the responsibility of 

ELWA Limited. 

1.2 The assets used to provide the service are recognised on the Authority’s Balance Sheet. 

Movements in their value over the year are detailed in the analysis of the movement on 

the Property, Plant and Equipment balance in Note 8. 

1.3 The Government provides PFI grant funding based upon a Notional Credit Approval of 

£47 million, equivalent to approximately £85 million over 25 years.  In 2010/11 the 

Government changed the annual PFI grant funding from a declining balance basis to an 

annuity basis with a final payment made in 2026/27. This did not affect the overall total 

grant in cash terms which has remained the same.  

1.4 The Code of Practice 2016/17 requires that PFI schemes are accounted for in a manner 

that is consistent with the adaptation of IFRIC 12 ‘Service Concession Arrangements’ 

contained in the government’s Financial Reporting Manual (FReM).  The contract 

complies with these criteria, and the relevant accounting guidance has been applied as 

outlined in the Authority’s Accounting Policies, detailed on page 28. 

Future Contractual Obligations  

1.5 The Authority makes an agreed payment each year which is increased each year by 

inflation and can be reduced if the contractor fails to meet availability and performance 

standards in any year but which is otherwise fixed.  Payments remaining to be made 
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under the PFI contract at 31 March 2017 (excluding any estimation of inflation and 

availability / performance deductions) are as follows:   

 

Payment for 

Services 

£000 

Reimbursement of 

Capital Expenditure 

£000 

Interest 

£000 

Total 

£000 

Payable in 2017/18 37,421  5,221  4,230  46,872  

Payable within 2 to 5 years 158,910  22,685  13,682  195,278  

Payable within 6 to 10 years 212,424  37,894  8,622  258,941  

Payable within 11 to  15 years 30,099  7,186  287  37,571  

Total 438,854  72,987 26,821  538,662  

 

1.6 Although the payments made to the contractor are described as unitary payments, they 

have been calculated to compensate the contractor for the fair value of the services 

they provide, the capital expenditure incurred and interest payable whilst the capital 

expenditure remains to be reimbursed. The liability outstanding to pay the liability to 

the contractor for capital expenditure incurred is as follows.  

 

PFI Finance Liability 

 2015/16 

£000 

2016/17 

£000 

Balance outstanding at start of the year 83,534 78,277  

Payments during the year (5,257) (5,290)  

Balance outstanding at year-end 78,277 72,987 

 

Unitary Charge 

1.7 As per accounting requirements for PFI schemes referred to in note 25.4, the Unitary 

Charge payment to the contractor has to reflect all the charges relating to the PFI 

contract for that year. The Accounting Standard requires that the service, interest, 

capital, lifecycle and contingent rent elements of the Unitary Charge are separated as 

shown in the table below, with the service, interest, rent and lifecycle elements being 

charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 

 

1.8 During 2016/17 Lifecycle costs of £1,071,000 were incurred by the PFI contractor of 

which £906,000 was charged to the Unitary Payment. 

1.9 Payments to contractor in the above table excludes contract insurance payments of 

£999,600 (15/16 £985,000) as these do not form part of the service charge calculation. 

PFI Deferred Income 

1.10 During 2016/17 the contractor provided assets to the value of £2,700,000 for no 

additional cost for the duration of the contract. These leased assets with a contra 

liability have been added to the balance sheet. As their benefit is consumed, the related 

deferred income is released to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure account.  

 2015/16 

£000 

2016/17 

£000 

Payments to Shanks East London 57,464 58,804 

Capital Repayment (5,257) (5,290) 

Interest Payable (4,854) (4,538) 

Life Cycle Costs (1,795) (906) 

Contingent Rent (2,464) (3,972) 

Service Charges 43,094 44,098 
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26. Defined Benefit Pension Schemes 

Participation in Pension Schemes 

1.1 As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Authority makes 

contributions towards the cost of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits 

will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Authority has a commitment to 

make the payments (for those benefits) and to disclose them at the time that 

employees earn their future entitlement. 

Transaction Relating to Post Employment Benefits 

1.2 The Authority recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services 

when they are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid 

as pensions. However, the charge that is required to be made against the levy is based 

on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post-employment/retirement benefit 

is reversed out of the Revenue Reserve via the Movement in Reserves Statement.  

1.3 The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement and the Revenue Reserve Balance via the movement in 

Reserves Statement during the year: 

 2015/16 

£000 

2016/17 

£000 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement   

Cost of Services, employee & support services:   

Current Service Cost 60 57 

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure:   

Net Interest Expense 49 51 

Administration Expenses 3 3 

Total Post Employment Benefit charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the 

provision of Services 
112 111 

Other Post Employment Benefit charged to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement 
  

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability comprising:   

Return on plan assets 88 (372) 

Other actuarial (gains)/losses - 93 

Change in financial assumptions (180) 686 

Change in demographic assumptions - (94) 

Experience (gain)/loss on defined benefit obligation - (188) 

Total Re-measurements (92) 125 

Total Post Employment Benefit charged to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement 
20 236 

Movement in Reserve Statement   

Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit on the provision of Services 

for post-employment benefits in accordance with the code  
92 (125) 

Actual amount charged against the Revenue Reserve Balance for pensions in the 

year 
(47) (44) 

Employer’s contributions payable to scheme 65 67 

 

 2015/16 

£000 

2016/17 

£000 

Balance B/Fwd - - 

Asset provided - 2,700 

Deferred income released to CI&E - (123) 

Balance C/fwd - 2,577 
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1.4 The underlying assets and liabilities attributable to the Authority with the London 

Pensions Fund Authority (LPFA) as at 31 March 2017 are as follows: 

 

Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities (defined benefit obligation): 

 Funded Liabilities 

Local Government Pension Scheme 

 2015/16 

£000 

2016/17 

£000 

Opening Balance at 1 April 3,742 3,674 

Current Service Cost 60 57 

Interest Cost 119 127 

Contributions by scheme participants 34 35 

Actuarial gains and losses from changes in demographic assumptions - (94) 

Actuarial gains and losses from changes in financial assumptions (180) 686 

Experience (gains)/losses - (188) 

Benefits paid  (101) (101) 

Closing Balance at 31 March  3,674 4,196 

 

Reconciliation of the movements in the fair value of scheme (plan) assets:  

 Funded Assets 

Local Government Pension Scheme 

 2015/16 

£000 

2016/17 

£000 

Opening fair value of scheme assets 2,203 2,180 

Interest Income 70 76 

Return on plan assets less interest (88) 372 

Other actuarial gains and (losses) - (93) 

Administration Expenses (3) (3) 

Employer contributions 65 67 

Contributions by scheme participants 34 35 

Benefits paid  (101) (101) 

Closing fair value of scheme assets  2,180 2,533 

 

1.5 The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected 

returns available on the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected 

yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the 

Balance Sheet date. 

1.6 The LPFA Fund’s assets consist of the following categories at fair value, by proportion of 

the total assets held: 

Assets 
2015/16 

% 

2015/16 

£000 

2016/17 

% 

2016/17 

£000 

Equities 46 1,012 59 1,502 

LDI/Cash-flow matching 10 221 -  -  

Target Return Portfolio 21 464 21 535 

Infrastructure 6 119 5 133 

Commodities - 10 - - 

Property 4 78 5 129 

Cash 13 276 10 234 

     

Total 100 2,180 100 2,533 
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1.7 Expected returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return 

experienced in the respective markets.  

1.8 The total return on the fund assets for the year to 31 March 2017 is £448,000 (2015/16 

£18,000 loss). 

1.9 The asset share as at 31 December 2016 is as follows: 

 

 

Employer Asset Share – Bid Value  31 December 2016 

  % Quoted % Unquoted 

Equities    

Segregated  Materials 0.7 - 

 Telecommunication services 0.6 - 

 Consumer, Discretionary 4.0 - 

 Consumer, Staples 7.0 - 

 
Health Care 

Energy 

5.1 

0.0 
- 

 Financials 4.1 - 

 Industrials 6.2 - 

 Information Technology 5.5 - 

 Utilities 1.0 - 

 Real Estate 0.7  

Unsegregated Investment funds and unit trusts 6.3 - 

 Trade Cash/Pending 0.6 - 

 Synthetic Equity (Futures) 7.2 - 

Private Equity  - 10.4 

Total Return    

 
Investment/Hedge Funds and unit 

trusts 
10.4 4.3 

Credit  - 3.6 

Infrastructure Commodity Funds 0.2 0.4 

 Infrastructure 0.3 4.3 

Real Estate  - 5.1 

Cash    

 Cash 2.5 - 

 LDI 19.2 (7.2) 

 Synthesized cash 2.3 - 

 Synthetic Equity (Futures) (7.2) - 

 Currency Hedge (Forward Contracts) - (0.4) 

BlackRock DDG    

 Equities 0.5 - 

 Bonds 1.1 0.0 

 Cash 0.3 - 

 
Investment/Hedge Funds and Unit 

truts 
0.8 0.2 

 Derivatives - - 

Total  79.4% 20.7% 
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Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet  

1.10 The amount in the Balance Sheet arising from the authority’s obligation in respect of its 

defined benefit plans is as follows: 

 Funded Liabilities 

Local Government Pension Scheme 

 2015/16 

£000 

2016/17 

£000 

Present value of the defined benefit obligation 3,674 4,196 

Fair value of plan assets (2,180) (2,533) 

Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation  1,494 1,663 

 

1.11 With effect from 1 April 2007 the Authority became an employer. On 1 June 2007 five 

staff was transferred from the Constituent Councils to the Authority with initially three 

staff electing to join the LPFA. Membership as at the 31 March 2017 consisted of five 

active members, one deferred pensioner and three pensioners. 

1.12 The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Authority has in the long run 

to pay post-employment (retirement) benefits. The net pension liability of £1,663,000 

(£1,494,000 2015/16) has a substantial impact on the net worth of the Authority as 

recorded in the Balance Sheet. However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit 

mean that there is no material direct impact on the financial position of the Authority. 

The deficit in respect of LPFA Fund liabilities will be made good by increased 

contributions to the LPFA Fund over the remaining working life of the employees (i.e. 

before payments fall due), as assessed by the scheme actuary. 

1.13 The projected employer contributions for the year to 31 March 2018 are £65,000. 

 

Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities  

1.14 Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an 

estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions 

about mortality rates, salary levels, etc. Liabilities have been assessed by Barnett 

Waddingham LLP, an independent firm of actuaries, who use a roll forward approach, 

based on the results of the last full valuation of the LPFA Fund as at 31 March 2016, 

and adjusting for known membership and scheme changes where applicable.   

1.15 The principal assumptions used by the LPFA actuary have been: 

 

 2015/16 2016/17 

Mortality assumptions   

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:   

Men  23.5 22.0 

Women  26.2 25.5 

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:   

Men  25.8 24.3 

Women  28.5 27.7 

Financial Assumptions:   

Rate of Inflation RPI (CPI) 3.2% (2.3%) 3.5% (2.6%) 

Rate of increase in salaries 4.1% 4.1% 

Rate of increase in pensions 2.3% 2.6% 

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 3.5% 2.7% 

Take up of option to convert annual pension into retirement lump sum - - 
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1.16 The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial 

assumptions set out in the previous table.  

1.17 The sensitivity analyses in the following table have been determined based on 

reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting 

period and assumes for each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the 

other assumptions remain constant. For example, the sensitivity analysis impact figure 

for longevity is based solely on the assumption of life expectancy increasing or 

decreasing for men and women. Whereas in practice, this is unlikely to occur; as a 

change in one assumption may affect the other assumptions due to their being 

interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting 

policies for the scheme, i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit 

method. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity 

analysis below did not change from those used in the previous period. 

 

Sensitivity Analysis 

 Impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation in the 

Scheme – based on £4,196 (2016/17) 

 Increase in Assumption 
by 0.1% 

Decrease in Assumption 
by 0.1% 

Adjustment to:   

 - discount rate 4,127 4,266 

 - long term salary increase 4,202 4,190 

 - pension increases and deferred revaluation 4,260 4,133 

 - mortality age rating assumption 4,362 4,036 

 

27. Provisions 

1.1 The Authority has a provision for the cost of settling business losses incurred by Aveley 

Methane Limited. 

 

28. Contingent Liabilities 

1.1 As at the 31st March 2017 the Authority had one material contingent liability: 

Wennington Fly Tipping Clearance 

1.2 There is an ongoing possibility that the Authority will have to remove and dispose of 

waste which was illegally fly tipped at one of the Authority’s closed landfill sites. The 

Managing Director is in receipt of a technical report and is continuing discussions with 

Thurrock enforcement officers to establish what further action might be required. 

1.3 It is difficult to determine the final cost of dealing with the waste. The Authority has no 

information on the land levels before the fly-tipping, therefore it is difficult to estimate 

how much waste there is. 

1.4 Remedying the illegal waste activity would include surveys, equipment and manpower 

as well as landfill tax and clean-up/environment costs.  

 2015/16 

£000 

2016/17 

£000 

Balance at 1 April 250 250 

Provision made in 2016/17 - - 

Balance at 31 March 250 250 
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1.5 Removal of the waste and disposal to landfill is seen as a last resort.  If the waste has 

to be removed then other options will be explored to utilise this material elsewhere as 

the majority of the material is inert.  Depending on the action taken the cost could be 

anything between £10,000 (to tidy the site, remove roads, and re profile the land which 

will involve cleaning the soil and planting) and in excess of £1,000,000 if 100% of the 

material is disposed of to landfill. 

1.6 The illegal deposit of waste at this site is under investigation by the Environment 

Agency. 

 

29. Financial Instruments  

1.1 The following categories of financial instruments are carried in the Balance Sheet. 

 Long-Term Current 

 31 March 

2016 

£000 

31 March 

2017 

£000 

31 March 

2016 

£000 

31 March 

2017 

£000 

Cash at Bank     

Loans and Receivables (note 11) - - (44) 11 

Total Cash at Bank - - (44) 11 

Investments     

Loans and receivables - - 7,838 8,313 

Total Investments - - 7,838 8,313 

Debtors     

Loans and receivables - - 1,627 2,364 

Total Debtors (note 10) - - 1,627 2,364 

Borrowings     

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (1,250) (1,250) (26) (26) 

Total Borrowings (1,250) (1,250) (26) (26) 

Other long term liabilities     

PFI and finance lease liabilities (78,277) (72,987) - (2,577) 

Total other long term liabilities  (78,277) (72,987) - (2,577) 

Creditors & Provisions     

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost  - - (6,745) (6,092) 

Total Creditors & Provisions (notes 12 & 27) - - (6,745) (6,092) 
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1.2 Financial Instrument impact on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

is as follows: 

 

Income, Expense, Gains and Losses 

 2015/16 2016/17 
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 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Interest expense (note 7) 4,977 - - - 4,977 4,661 - - - 4,661 

Contingent Rent 2,464 - - - 2,464 3,972 - - - 3,972 

Pension Interest & expected 

return on pension assets (note 7) 
52 - - - 52 54 - - - 54 

Total expense in Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of 

Services 

7,493 - - - 7,493 8,687 - - - 8,687 

Impairment reversal (note 7) - (37) - - (37) - - - - - 

Interest Income (note 7) - (80) - - (80) - (32) - - (32) 

Total income in Surplus or 

Deficit on the Provision of 

Services 

- (117) - - (117)  (32) - - (32) 

Net loss /(gain) for the year 7,493 (117) - - 7,376 8,687 (32) - - 8,655 

 

Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities 

1.3 Financial liabilities and financial assets represented by loans and receivables and long-

term debtors and creditors are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. Their fair 

value can be assessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows that will take 

place over the remaining term of the instruments.  

1.4 The fair value of Public Works loan Board (PWLB) loans is calculated using the 

premature repayment rate published by the PWLB on the 31 march 2017, making the 

following assumptions:  

 Estimated ranges of interest rates at 31 March 2017 are (0.09%) to 1.68% for 

loans from the PWLB. 

 No early repayment or impairment is recognised. 

 Where an instrument will mature in the next 12 months, carrying amount is 

assumed to approximate to fair value. 
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1.5 The fair values calculated are as follows:  

 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 

 Carrying 
amount 

£000 

Fair Value 

£000 

Carrying 
amount 

£000 

Fair Value 

£000 

Financial Liabilities     

Long-term creditors     

PFI Liabilities 78,277 78,277 72,987 72,987 

Public Works Loan Board 1,250 2,313 1,250 2,302 

Short-term creditors     

Public Works Loan Board 26 26 26 26 

Creditors (note 12) 6,495 6,495 5,842 5,842 

Provisions 250 250 250 250 

Cash at bank 44 44 -  - 

Loans and Receivables     

Short-term debtors     

Debtors (note 10) 1,627 1,627 2,364 2,364 

Cash Investments 7,838 7,838 8,313 8,313 

Total Short –term debtors 9,465 9,465 10,677 10,677 

 

1.6 The fair value of outstanding long term debts as at 31 March 2017 is £2.3 million. (31 

March 2016 £2.3 million). This is higher than the book value due to changes in market 

factors since the original borrowing was made. The Authority has pledged no collateral 

in respect of repayment of any loan to another entity. 

1.7 The carrying value of Financial Instruments reported on the Balance Sheet includes 

interest on loans and investments. 

1.8 As at 31st March 2017 the Authority had not entered into any financial guarantees. 

30. Nature and Extent of Risks arising from Financial Instruments 

Overall Procedures for Managing Risk 

1.1 The Authority’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: 

 Credit risk - the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to 

the Authority. 

 Liquidity Risk – the possibility that the Authority might not have funds available 

to meet its commitments to make payments. 

 Market risk – the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Authority as a 

result of changes in such measures as interest rates and stock market 

movements. 

1.2 The Authority’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of 

financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the resources 

available to fund its services. Risk management is carried out by the London Borough of 

Redbridge’s central treasury team, under policies approved by the Authority in the 

annual Treasury Management Strategy. The Authority provides written principles for 

overall risk management as well as written policies covering specific areas such as 

interest rate risk, credit risk and the investment of surplus cash.  
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Credit Risk 

1.3 Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit 

exposures to the Authority’s customers. 

1.4 This risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which requires that 

deposits are not made with financial institutions unless they meet identified minimum 

credit criteria, as laid down by Mitch and Foody’s Ratings Services. The Annual 

Investment Strategy also imposes a maximum sum to be invested with a financial 

institution located within each category. 

1.5 The credit criteria in respect of financial assets held by the Authority are as detailed 

below: 

Credit risk arising from deposits with Banks and Financial Institutions 

1.6 Deposits are not made with banks and financial institutions unless they are rated 

independently and meet the Authority’s credit criteria, which are restricted to the upper 

end of the independent credit rating criteria. In addition, investment values are set 

taking into account the institutions’ credit rating and the duration of lending. The 

Authority has also set limits as to the maximum percentage of the investment portfolio 

that can be placed with any one class of institution and this is monitored on a daily 

basis. All transactions in relation to deposits were in line with the Authority’s approved 

credit ratings. 

1.7 The Annual Investment Strategy requires the Authority to maintain a counterparty list 

that follows the criteria set out in the Treasury Management Practices.  

Creditworthiness is assessed by the use of credit ratings provided by Fitch, Moody’s and 

Standard & Poor’s to assess an institution’s long and short-term financial strength along 

with its individual and support ratings. Other information provided by Brokers, Advisers 

and financial and economic reports are also collated and assessed and then used to 

produce a matrix to monitor each individual institution against the Authority's criteria. 

1.8 Any counterparty whose ratings fall to the extent that they no longer meet the credit 

criteria are immediately removed from the lending list. Only highly rated counterparties 

may be included on the lending list such as: 

 UK Part Nationalised Banks.  

 Building Societies with assets in excess of £3 billion. 

 AAA rated Money Market Funds. 

 The UK Government (Debt Management Office and Gilts). 

 Other Local Authorities. 

 Enhanced Cash Funds. 

 Non UK Government and Supranational Institutions. 

1.9 Customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their financial 

position, past experience and other factors, with individual credit limits being set in 

accordance with internal ratings in accordance with parameters set by the Authority. 

1.10 The Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks 

and building societies of £8.313m cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any 

institution failing to make interest payments or repay the principal sum will be specific 

to each individual institution. Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such 

entities to be unable to meet their commitments. A risk of irrecoverability applies to all 

of the Authority’s deposits, but there was no evidence at the 31 March 2017 that this 

was likely to crystallise.   

Page 65 of 108



East London Waste Authority 

Statement of Accounts 

For the Year Ended 31 March 2017 

Page 58 of 73 

1.11 In addition, the diversification of investments also provides additional security. The 

maximum percentages of the investment portfolio, which may be invested in each class 

of assets, are detailed below: 

 

Asset Class Percentages 

Type of Asset % Of Total Investment as set 

by 2016/17 Treasury 

Management Strategy 

% 

% Of Total 

Investment as at 

31 March 2017 

% 

UK Government  100 - 

Local Authorities 100 - 

UK Banks- Specified 100 84 

Money Market Funds   75 16 

Building Societies - Specified  50 - 

Total Unspecified Investments   55 - 

Non UK Banks – Specified (subject 

to group limit) 

 35 
- 

Non UK Government and 

Supranational Bonds (subject to 

group limit) 

 35 

- 

Total Group Non UK Investments  35 - 

Corporate Bonds  15 - 

1.12 The asset class percentages are well within the Upper limits prescribed in the 

Authority’s Treasury Management Strategy for 2016/17. 

1.13 The boundary is set at £1 million for long-term investments as specified in the 

Authority’s Treasury Management Strategy.  The Authority currently has no investments 

for longer than one year. 

1.14 No breaches of the Authority’s counter-party criteria occurred during the reporting 

period and the Authority does not expect any losses from non-performance by any of its 

counterparties in relation to deposits. 

Credit risk arising from Authority’s exposure from other debtors 

1.15 There has been no provision for bad debtors as 31 March 2017 (£nil provision 31 March 

2016), as all outstanding debtors are expected to pay. 

1.16 No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period and the Authority does not 

expect any losses from non-performance by any of its counterparties in relation to 

deposits.  

1.17 Invoiced payments for services are either required in advance or due at the time the 

service is provided.  As at 31 March 2017, £151,000 amount (nil amount as at 31 March 

2016) is due to the Authority from its trade debtors, who are mainly other Local 

Authorities, the total being past its due date.  The past due but not impaired amount 

can be analysed by age as follows:  
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Invoiced Payments for Services 
31 March 2016 

£000 

31 March 2017 

£000 

Three months or less - 151 

Four to six months - - 

Seven months to one year - - 

One year and over - - 

 - 151 

Liquidity Risk  

1.18 The authority has a comprehensive cash flow management system that seeks to ensure 

that cash is available as needed. If unexpected movements happen, the authority has 

ready access to borrowings from the money markets and the Public Works Loans Board. 

There is no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its 

commitments under financial instruments. Instead, the risk is that the authority will be 

bound to replenish a significant proportion of its borrowings at a time of unfavourable 

interest rates. The authority sets limits on the proportion of its fixed rate borrowing 

during specified periods. The strategy is to ensure that no more than 35% of loans are 

due to mature within any one year through a combination of careful planning of new 

loans taken out and (where it is economic to do so) making early repayments. 

1.19 As at 31 March 2017, all of the Authority’s outstanding loans were with PWLB. 

Refinancing and Maturity Risk  

1.20 The maturity analysis for borrowing is as follows: 

Renewal Period Market Loans 

Outstanding as at 

31st March 2017 

£000’s 

Limit of 

projected Fixed 

rate Borrowing 
for each period 

% 

% of Total 

Borrowing 

31st March 2016 

% 

% of Total 

Borrowing 

31st March 2017 

% 

Less than one Year - 35 - - 

Between one and two years - 45 - - 

Between two and five years - 60 - 35 

Between five and ten years 450 80 35 - 

More than 10 Years 826 100 65 65 

Total 1,276  100 100 

1.21 All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year. 

Market Risk  

1.22 The Authority is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on 

its borrowings and investments. Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on 

the Authority. For instance, a rise in interest rates would have the following effects: 

 Borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the liabilities will fall.  

 Investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall. 

 Borrowing at variable rates – the interest expense charged to the Surplus and 

Deficit on the provision of services will rise. 

 Investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the Surplus and 

Deficit on the Provision of Services will rise. 

1.23 Borrowings are not carried at fair value, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate 

borrowings would not impact on the Surplus and Deficit on the Provision of Services or 

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.  However, changes in interest payable 

and receivables on variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted to the 

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services and affect the Revenue Reserve Balance. 
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1.24 The Authority has the following strategies to manage interest rate risk: 

 Setting a maximum for Authority’s borrowings at variable rates. For 2016/17 all 

the Authority’s borrowings were at fixed rates. 

 Prudent borrowing and repayments arrangements, by limiting the net annual 

repayment of debt to the outstanding debt.  

1.25 The Authority, through the London Borough of Redbridge Treasury Management team, 

has an active strategy for assessing interest rate exposure that feeds into the setting of 

the annual budget and which is used to monitor performance throughout the year. This 

allows any adverse changes to be responded to and accommodated quickly.  

1.26 According to this assessment strategy, at 31 March 2017, if discount rates had been 1% 

higher with all other variables held constant, the financial effect would be: 

 £000 

Decrease in fair value of long term fixed rate investments assets – No impact on Other 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

- 

Decrease in fair value of fixed rate borrowings liabilities - No impact on Other Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure 
164 

1.27 As at 31 March 2017 the Authority holds no variable interest rate investments or 

borrowings as they are all fixed rates. Therefore there is no predicted impact for this on 

the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

1.28 The impact of a 1% fall in discount rates would be as above but with the movements 

being reversed. These assumptions are based on the same methodology as used in the 

Note 29 – Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities. 
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

1.   Introduction 

1.1 Each year the Authority is required by regulation to produce a statement that details 

the framework for making decisions and controlling the resources of the Authority. The 

statement covers both the Authority’s governance arrangements as well as internal 

control issues. This statement should enable stakeholders to have substantial assurance 

that decisions are properly made and public money is being properly spent on citizens’ 

behalf. The statement below complies with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 

2. Scope of responsibility 

1.1 The East London Waste Authority (ELWA) is responsible for ensuring that its business is 

conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is 

safeguarded, properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.  

ELWA also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to 

secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having 

regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.  

1.2 In discharging these obligations, the Authority is required by Regulation 5 of the 

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 to put in place proper arrangements for the 

governance of its affairs, and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which 

includes arrangements for the management of risk and evaluating the effectiveness of 

the Authority’s overall governance and risk management arrangements, by taking into 

account public sector auditing standards. 

 

3. The purpose of the Governance Framework  

1.1 The Governance Framework comprises of the systems and processes, culture and 

values, by which the Authority and its activities are directed, governed and controlled, 

and through which it accounts to and engages with the community. An effective 

governance framework enables the Authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic 

objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of 

appropriate and cost-effective services.   

1.2 The system of internal control is a significant and ongoing part of the governance 

framework and is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all 

risks connected with failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives, but effective 

internal systems of control can provide substantial, albeit not absolute assurance, of the 

effectiveness of the Authority’s policies, aims and objectives. The system of internal 

control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to 

the achievement of the Authority’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the 

likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to 

manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.  

1.3 The Authority’s governance framework is established through its systems, processes, 

cultures and values.  Its systems and controls are regularly reviewed to reflect changing 

needs. The ELWA Code has been incorporated into the Authority’s Constitution as a 

single point of reference for the Authority's framework for its Governance 

arrangements.   

4. Vision and Purpose  

1.1 ELWA has the vision “To provide an effective and efficient waste management service 

that is environmentally acceptable and delivers services that local people value”.  This 

vision is supported by objectives and joint targets.  The vision was adopted in 

consultation with stakeholders. 
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1.2 The Integrated Waste Management Strategy (IWMS) sets out the Authority’s strategic 

direction.  It shows the integrated planning process that links the Strategy, Vision, Aims 

and Priorities. It also outlines the actions to be taken to deliver on the strategic 

priorities.  This is reviewed annually to identify new key actions to be considered in the 

service planning process a range of performance indicators assists in the monitoring of 

activity. ELWA is considering its future waste strategy in the light of the Joint Waste 

Plan including technical options and sites for delivery of waste facilities in line with the 

waste hierarchy. The Integrated Waste Management strategy will be reviewed and 

updated to reflect ELWA’s evolving strategic aims. 

1.3 The Integrated Waste Management Strategy underpins the annual service delivery 

plans that are agreed by ELWA and the Contractor. These are required under the IWMS 

Contract, which was entered into in 2002, at the commencement of the 25 year waste 

contract. These requirements are: 

 The Overall Service Delivery Plan (OSDP) of ELWA Limited is a Plan that covers 

the 25 years of the Contract. This is a schedule to the Contract and is essentially 

the operational and technical proposal by Shanks Waste Management (SWM) to 

meet ELWA’s requirements. 

 The 3 or 5 Year Service Delivery Plan (SDP) follows a similar format to the OSDP 

but provides a greater level of detail. The first 5 Year SDP is also a schedule to 

the Contract.  

 The Annual Budget and Service Delivery Plan (ABSDP) follow a similar format to 

the other SDPs but provide a greater level of detail, particularly in respect of 

financial matters. The first ABSDP, relating to the period up until 31st March 

2003, was finalised and incorporated as a schedule to the Contract. The ABSDP 

is considered prior to the commencement of the relevant financial year to which 

it relates. This ensures that the levy report in February takes the ABSDP into 

account and can fully reflect the likely expenditure commitments arising from the 

Contract. The ABSDP process also affords opportunity for the constituent 

councils to provide input into the proposed plans to take into account any 

planned service changes or requirements in the coming financial year. 

1.4 The Authority can apply various penalties under its IWMS contract if these Plans, once 

approved, are not adhered to and met. In extreme circumstances, the Authority could 

terminate the Contract. 

1.5 It is recognised that the Authority cannot achieve its vision alone.  It needs to work in 

partnership with its four Constituent Councils, other agencies and the community to 

make this happen.  

5. Performance Management and Reporting 

1.1 The performance management framework demonstrates how effective the actions being 

taken are and assists in monitoring progress in the way in which the Authority’s 

strategies are translated into action plans. It also helps to identify if any risks are 

materialising when indicators do not show the level of progression anticipated.  

1.2 The performance management framework is therefore instrumental in identifying and 

mapping continuous improvement of services across the Authority.   

1.3 The fundamentals of contractual performance management are embedded in the way 

the Authority operates. There is:  

 A corporately defined process that ensures that Plans are linked to strategic aims 

and that performance statements and other published information are accurate 

and reliable; 
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 Mechanisms whereby performance is discussed and reported throughout all 

levels of the organisation and those of its partners, in particular to Members and 

Officers in Authority meetings, Management Board, Operational Management 

Team and Contract Monitoring Group. Such performance reporting includes not 

only regular financial monitoring and contract monitoring but also progress on 

the contract review and achievement of efficiencies. During 2017/18 there will 

be a proposed review of the above groups and their interaction with each other, 

as well as the proposed establishment of a scrutiny panel and other project 

groups. 

1.4 A performance management system is in place for all Authority Officers. This ensures 

each member of staff has clear and measurable objectives that are ultimately aligned to 

the strategic objectives of the Authority.  

6. Authority Constitution  

1.1 The Constitution sets out the governance and decision making arrangements of the 

Authority, including the roles and responsibilities of Members and Officers. It provides 

details about how decisions are made and who can make them. It also contains the 

rules for managing our finances and resources effectively.   

1.2 Emerging changes to our governance structure, including the Constitution, are 

presented at Authority meetings for approval. A copy of the Constitution is on the 

Authority’s website. This includes a clear reference to the scheme of delegation, which 

outlines who is authorised to make particular decisions and the remit of those decisions. 

In addition, clear rules regarding contractual and tendering matters and dealings with 

land are outlined within the Constitution. Alongside these are financial regulations 

relating to income and expenditure and financial authority limits. 

7. Codes of Conduct 

1.1 Part E of the ELWA Constitution deals with the Codes of Conduct for Members and 

Employees.  Each of ELWA’s four Constituent Councils has adopted the mandatory 

provisions of the Model Code and Redbridge Council has included local provisions into 

its Code of Conduct.  ELWA is not required to adopt a Code of Conduct for its Members. 

The Authority’s Members are bound by their respective Council Codes when they act in 

their official capacity for ELWA.  

8. Risk Management  

1.1 The Authority has embedded risk management processes throughout its structure.   The 

Corporate Risk Register which deals with both strategic and operational risks is agreed 

and reviewed by the ELWA Management Board and Authority Members on a regular 

basis. 

1.2 Financial and operational risks are embedded within individual reports that are 

presented at Authority meetings.  

1.3 Risk identification and management processes are also in place for projects, 

partnerships and contracts. 

9. Compliance with policies, laws and regulations 

1.1 The Constitution sets out the legal framework for making decisions and publishing 

them. The Authority has the following statutory officers; Head of Paid Service – 

Managing Director, Section 73 officer (Local Government Act 1985), and Monitoring 

Officer – Legal Adviser each of whom has the power to refer matters to the Authority 

where a breach of regulation is possible or suspected. These officers form part of the 

Management Board. None of these officers have been required to use their powers 

during the year.  
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1.2 The statutory officers also provide professional advice on all key decision-making 

reports to ensure all relevant legal, financial, risk management, procedural and equality 

implications are addressed. 

10. Counter Fraud including Whistle-blowing 

1.1 The Authority has an agreed Anti-Fraud & Corruption Strategy and Whistleblowing 

procedure embedded in the Constitution. Two key components that support the 

Strategy are: 

 Whistle blowing arrangements that are available to the general public, 

employees, and contractors. Our Constituent Councils have their own 

whistleblowing procedures.  

 Delivering a programme of anti-fraud training and guidance, including a Fraud 

Response Plan to instil a culture and awareness that fraud will not be tolerated.  

1.2 The current website for the Authority went live in 2017 following a review and 

development process. The website is used to engage directly with the community on 

waste reduction, reuse and recycling and disposal matters.  

11. Complaints process  

1.1 The Authority has a recognised complaints process, and aims to comply and conform to 

the complaints procedures operating in each of the four Constituent Councils. 

1.2 Members also receive enquiries and complaints via their surgeries, walkabouts or by 

correspondence. ELWA Officers support Members in addressing these queries to ensure 

that the public receive an appropriate answer.  

1.3 Members of the public may also complain to the Local Government Ombudsman if a 

corporate complaint has not been satisfactorily resolved and maladministration could 

arise. The Authority has had no previous history of any such complaints. 

1.4 Complaints are analysed and assessed so that the organisation can identify trends and 

issues and if necessary, put in place changes and improvements to prevent complaints 

reoccurring. 

12. Training and development  

1.1 Members receive a briefing to keep them up to date with changes and to supplement 

their training needs via their Constituent Councils.  This is supplemented by formal and 

informal information about ELWA through briefings, workshops and conferences. 

1.2 Training and development of staff continues via professional associations, committee 

reports, conferences, seminars, courses run by Constituent Councils, on-line tuition and 

bespoke courses and liaison with the appropriate central government department. 

These are related to the demands of new legislation and operational practices. 

13. Communication and engagement  

1.1 The Authority has a responsibility to communicate how to access basic services and 

information. The Authority’s primary communication methods are comprehensive 

reporting, its website, leaflets and briefings for Constituent Councils.  In addition, the 

Authority and the Constituent Councils have combined with the contractor to implement 

a Communications Strategy to drive through improvements in waste management 

performance. 

14. Partnerships  

1.1 The most significant partnerships for the Authority are with its four Constituent Councils 

and through the IWMS Contract with Shanks Waste Management and John Laing 

Investments Limited that make up ELWA Limited.  
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1.2 There are sound governance arrangements in place for partnerships. They are 

implemented via regular formal meetings with Shanks Waste Management including 

those at ELWA Limited and regular formal meetings with the Councils including those at 

the ELWA Management Board, Operational Management Team and Contract Monitoring 

group. 

15. Review of effectiveness  

1.1 ELWA has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness 

of its governance framework including the system of internal control, albeit this is 

treated as an ongoing process. The Managing Director has the responsibility for the 

maintenance and development of the internal control environment. The framework for 

this is in the Constitution and support is provided by the regular review process carried 

out by Internal Audit, External Audit and other review agencies.  

1.2 The 5 yearly and annual processes, conducted within a formal framework provided by 

the Integrated Waste Management Strategy and Contract, enforce a disciplined review 

of objectives and effectiveness. 

16. Role of the Finance Director 

1.1 The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) fulfils the statutory requirements of the Local 

Government Act 1985 and is the organisation’s senior executive charged with leading 

and directing financial strategy and administration, and assisting the Head of Paid 

Service to discharge their corporate responsibilities. This is a pivotal role, both for 

external stakeholders and within the Management Board. At ELWA, this role is held by 

the Finance Director.  The Authority fully complies with the governance requirements 

and principles as set out in the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial 

Officer in Local Government (2016). 

17. Internal Audit  

1.1 Internal Audit and External Audit operate a joint working arrangement to maximise the 

effectiveness of the audit scrutiny of the Authority.  An effective Internal Audit function 

is a core part of the Authority’s arrangements to ensure the proper conduct of its 

financial affairs. Internal Audit priorities are risk based and agreed with the Section 73 

Officer, following consultation with the Management Board and External Audit as part of 

the annual planning process. 

1.2 The Senior Internal Audit Manager for the London Borough of Redbridge is authorised to 

complete a programme of audit reviews within the Authority. To assist in the 

accomplishment of this programme, the Financial Regulations of the Authority give 

authority for Internal Auditors to have full, free and unrestricted access to all Authority 

assets, records, documents, correspondence and personnel for the purposes of that 

audit. Recommendations arising from the work of both internal and external auditors 

are discussed and agreed with management, including acceptable timescales for their 

implementation. The Head of Audit for the London Borough of Redbridge reports on the 

outcomes of the annual programme of audit work to Members and management. 

18. External Audit 

1.1 The Authority’s external Auditor at the time of the audit of the 2016/17 accounts is 

KPMG. KPMG has an annual audit plan in place that is risk based and focuses on 

undertaking areas of work that enables them to fulfil their duties in providing an opinion 

on the Authority’s financial statements and whether or not we have sound 

arrangements in place to deliver value for money. This value for money conclusion is 

based on one overall criterion: that in all significant respects, the audited body had 

proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed 

resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. 

This overall criterion is supported by three sub criteria relating to: informed decision 
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making; sustainable resource deployment; and working with partners and other third 

parties. 

19. Governance and internal control issues requiring improvement and outcome of 

2016/17 action plan 

1.1 There were two key actions arising from the 2016/17 action plan and these are detailed 

below.  

Contract Management   

1.2 An action was for ELWA to continue to assess and drive forward the implementation of 

the Constituent Councils’ monitoring programme for the delivery of the IWMS contract. 

Implementation progress is reviewed at the regular Contract Monitoring Group meetings 

and as part of the SLA process between ELWA and the Constituent Councils.  

1.3 Another action was for ELWA and Shanks to work with the Automatic Number Plate 

Recognition (ANPR) System provider to address weaknesses in the system. The ANPR 

system is now fully operational. Further work continues on communication and access 

aspects as well as trigger limits.  

Budget pressures 

1.4 The action was in relation to the need to meet potential budget pressures in respect of 

efficiency savings and royalty payments. Plans were to be identified to meet the 

ongoing efficiency saving of £1.5m.       

1.5 In respect of the efficiency savings half the target was reached through ongoing savings 

in the contract already achieved. The total efficiency savings achieved in 2016/17 was 

£1.415m with significant one off savings also being achieved. As part of the Budget and 

Levy setting in 2017/18 Members agreed that the efficiency savings would be set at the 

level of ongoing savings achieved.  In September 2016 agreement was reached with 

the sub-contractor for a guaranteed level of royalty income at the level of spare 

capacity.     

20. Annual Governance Statement Action Plan 2017/18    

1.1 The actions planned for 2017/18 are detailed below: 

Number Area to 

develop 

Ongoing Action Timescales Lead 

Officer 

1 Contract 

Management 

service level 

agreement and 

performance 

standards 

- Service level agreements to reflect the 

actual monitoring to be carried out.  

- Review and check of whether this level 

of monitoring has taken place as per the 

reporting pro-formas. 

 - Monthly review of self-monitoring 

returns carried out by Shanks. 

By March 

2018 

Managing 

Director 

2 Reduce risk of 

fly-tipping at 

ELWA sites  

 

There are security risks to the remaining 

landfill sites with potential for break in 

and fly-tipping.  

Actions  

- increase security 

- CCTV monitoring  

-  Intelligence and   liaison with Thurrock 

Council as well as constituent councils 

on possible fly-tipper movements. 

By March 

2018 

Managing 

Director 
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Signed: 

 

…………………………………………………………….. 

Sharon Lea (Interim Managing Director) 

 

 

…………………………………………………………….. 

Cllr. Ken Clark (Chair) Date:  
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GLOSSARY 

Actuary 

An independent consultant who advises on the financial position of the Pension Fund. 

 

Actuarial Valuation 

Every three years the Actuary reviews the assets and liabilities of the Pension Fund and reports 

to the Authority on the fund’s financial position and recommended employers’ contribution 

rates. 

 

Appropriation 

The transfer of ownership of an asset from one Service to another at an agreed (usually 

market or outstanding debt) value. 

 

Accruals 

The amounts by which receipts or payments are increased in order to record the full income 

and expenditure incurred in an accounting period. 

 

Amortisation 

The writing off of a charge or loan balance over a period of time. 

Balance Sheet (Statement of Financial Position) 

A statement of all the assets, liabilities and other balances of the Authority at the end of an 

accounting period. 

 

Budget 

A forecast of future expenditure plans for the Authority. Detailed revenue budgets are 

prepared each year and it is on the basis of these figures that the Levy is set. Budgets are 

revised towards the year-end to take account of inflation, changes in patterns of services, and 

other factors. 

 

Capital Charge 

A depreciation charge to Service Revenue Accounts to reflect the cost of fixed assets used in 

the provision of the service. 

 

Capital Expenditure 

Expenditure on the acquisition of fixed assets or expenditure that adds to the value of an 

existing fixed asset. 

 

Capital Adjustment Account 

Represents amounts set aside from revenue resources or capital receipts to finance 

expenditure on fixed assets or for the repayment of external loans and certain other capital 

financing transactions. 

 

Capital Receipt 

Income received from the sale of a capital asset such as land or buildings. 
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Carrying Value (Book Value) 

For Financial Instruments, this value is the amount to be recognised on the Balance Sheet. 

Financial Assets and Liabilities need to be recognised in the Balance Sheet at fair value or at 

amortised cost. 

 

Cash  

Comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. 

 

Cash equivalents  

Are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of 

cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 

Cash flows  

Are inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents. 

 

Component Accounting 

Ensures that the overall value of an asset is fairly apportioned over its significant components. 

Each significant component is identified, valued and accounted for separately if its useful life 

and method of depreciation is different from the overall asset. 

 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

A Statement showing the Income and Expenditure of the Authority’s services during the year. 

It demonstrates how costs have been financed from the Levy and shows income from services 

provided. 

 

Contingent Liability 

A possible liability to future expenditure at the Balance Sheet date dependent upon the 

outcome of uncertain events. 

 

Credit Ratings for Investments 

A scoring system used by credit rating agencies such as Fitch, Moody’s and Standard and 

Poor’s to indicate the credit worthiness and other factors of Governments, Banks, Building 

Society’s, and other financial Institutions. 

 

Creditors 

Amount of money owed by the Authority for goods and services received.  

 

Debtors 

Amount of money owed to the Authority by individuals and organisations. 

 

Deferred Liabilities 

These are creditor balances repayable after one year. 

 

Defined Benefit Scheme 

A pension scheme that defines the benefits independently of the contributions payable. 

Benefits are not directly related to the investments of the Pension Fund.  
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Depreciation 

A Provision made in the accounts to reflect the value of assets used during the year. 

Deprecation forms part of the capital charge made to Service Revenue Accounts.  

 

Earmarked Reserves 

Amounts set aside for a specific purpose to meet future commitments or potential liabilities, 

for which it is not appropriate to establish provisions.  

 

Fair Value 

The amount that an asset can be exchanged or a liability settled between knowledgeable and 

willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. 

 

Finance Lease 

A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 

ownership of an asset. Title may or may not eventually be transferred. 

 

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account (FIAA) 

Provides a balancing mechanism between the different rates at which gains and losses are 

recognised under the CIPFA Code of Practice and are required by Statute to be met from the 

Revenue Reserve.  

 

Financing activities  

Are activities that result in changes in the size and composition of the principal, received from 

or repaid to external providers of finance. 

 

Historic Cost 

The actual cost of an asset in terms of past consideration as opposed to its current value. 

 

Impairment 

A reduction in the valuation of a fixed asset caused by consumption of economic benefits or by 

a general fall in prices. 

 

Intangible Fixed Assets 

Non-financial fixed assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and 

controlled by the Authority, for example purchased software licences. 

 

Investing activities  

The acquisition and disposal of long-term assets and other investments not included in cash 

equivalents. 

 

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 

The amount that has to be charged to revenue to provide for the redemption of debt. 

 

Net Book Value 

The amount at which fixed assets are included in the Balance Sheet after depreciation has 

been provided for. 
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Net Current Replacement Cost 

The current cost of replacing or recreating an asset in its existing use adjusted for the notional 

depreciation required to reflect the asset’s existing condition and remaining useful life. 

 

Net Realisable Value 

The open market value of the asset less the expenses to be incurred in realising the asset. 

 

Non Current Assets (Tangible Fixed Assets) 

Tangible Assets that yield benefits to the Local Authority and the services it provides for a 

period of more than one year.  

  

Non-Operational Assets 

Fixed assets held by the Authority but not directly occupied, used or consumed in the delivery 

of its services.  Examples are investments and surplus properties. 

 

Operating activities  

Are the activities of the entity that are not investing or financing activities. 

 

Operating Lease 

A lease other than a finance lease, i.e. a lease that permits the use of the asset without 

substantially transferring the risks and rewards of ownership. 

 

Operational Assets 

Fixed assets held, occupied, used or consumed by the Authority in the direct delivery of its 

service. 

 

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure  

Comprises items of expense and income (including reclassification adjustments) that are not 

recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services as required or permitted by 

the Code. Examples include changes in revaluation surplus; actuarial gains and losses on 

defined benefit plans; and gains and losses on remeasuring available-for-sale financial assets. 

 

Other Comprehensive Income 

A Statement bringing together all the gains and losses of the Authority.  

 

Outturn 

The actual level of expenditure and income for the year. 

 

Post Balance Sheet Events 

Those events that relate to the accounting year, both favourable and unfavourable, which 

occur between the Balance Sheet date and the date on which the Statement of Accounts is 

signed by the Director of Finance and Resources. 
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Private Finance Initiative  

A Central Government initiative whereby contracts are let to private sector suppliers for both 

services and capital investment in return for a unitary payment, which may be reduced if 

performance targets are not met.  

 

Projected Unit Method 

Actuarial valuation method whose key feature is to assess future service cost; the Actuary 

calculates the employer’s contribution rate, which will meet the cost of benefits accruing in the 

year after the valuation date. This method is considered appropriate for a Pension Fund open 

to new members. 

 

Provisions 

Amounts set aside for liabilities and losses, which are certain or very likely to occur but where 

the exact amount or timing of the payment are uncertain. 

 

Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) 

Central Government Agency, which funds much of Local Government borrowing. 

 

Reclassification adjustments  

Are amounts reclassified to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the current period 

that were recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in the current or 

previous periods. 

 

Reserves 

Amounts set aside that do not fall within the definition of a provision, to fund items of 

anticipated expenditure. These include general reserves or balances, which every Authority 

must maintain as a matter of prudence. 

 

Revaluation Reserve 

Represents the increase value of the Authority’s land and building assets from 1 April 2007. 

 

Revenue Expenditure 

The day-to-day expenditure of the Authority, e.g. pay, goods and services and capital 

financing charges. 

 

Revenue Reserve 

ELWA’s main Revenue Account from which is met the cost of providing most of the Authority’s 

services. 

 

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services  

Is the total of income less expenses, excluding the components of Other Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure. 

 

Support Services  

Activities of a professional, technical and administrative nature which are not local authority 

services in their own right, but support main front line services. 
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Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure  

Comprises all components of Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services and of Other 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 

 

ABBREVIATIONS USED IN ACCOUNTS 

ABSDP  Annual Budget and Service Delivery Plan 

AGS  Annual Governance Statement 

CFR  Capital Financing Requirement 

CIPFA  Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 

CLG  Communities and Local Government Department 

ELWA  East London Waste Authority 

FIAA  Financial Instruments Adjustments Account  

IAS  International Accounting Standards 

IFRIC  International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee 

IFRS  International Financial Reporting Standards 

IWMS  Integrated Waste Management Strategy 

LAAP  Local Authority Accounting Panel 

LGPS  Local Government Pension Scheme  

LPFA  London Pensions Fund Authority 

MIRs  Movement in Reserves Statement 

MRP  Minimum Revenue Provision 

OSDP  Overall Service Delivery Plan 

PFI  Private Finance Initiative  

PWLB  Public Works Loans Board 

SDP  Service Delivery Plan 

SeRCOP Service Reporting Code of Practice 
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This report is addressed to East London Waste Authority (the Authority) and has been prepared for the sole use of the Authority. We take no responsibility to any member of 
staff acting in their individual capacities, or to third parties. PSAA issued a document entitled Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies summarising 
where the responsibilities of auditors begin and end and what is expected from audited bodies. We draw your attention to this document which is available on PSAA’s website 
(www.psaa.co.uk).

External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibility for putting in place proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you have any concerns or are dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should 
contact Neil Hewitson, the engagement lead to the Authority, who will try to resolve your complaint. If you are dissatisfied with your response please contact the national lead 
partner for all of KPMG’s work under our contract with Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, Andrew Sayers (0207 694 8981, andrew.sayers@kpmg.co.uk). After this, if 
you are still dissatisfied with how your complaint has been handled you can access PSAA’s complaints procedure by emailing generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk, by telephoning 
020 7072 7445 or by writing to Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, 3rd Floor, Local Government House, Smith Square, London, SW1P 3H.
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This report is presented in 
accordance with our PSAA 
engagement.  Circulation of this 
report is restricted.  The content 
of this report is based solely on 
the procedures necessary for 
our audit.  This report is 
addressed to East London 
Waste Authority (the Authority) 
and has been prepared for your 
use only. We accept no 
responsibility towards any 
member of staff acting on their 
own, or to any third parties. 
The National Audit Office (NAO) 
has issued a document entitled 
Code of Audit Practice (the 
Code).  This summarises where 
the responsibilities of auditors 
begin and end and what is 
expected from the Authority.  
External auditors do not act as 
a substitute for the Authority’s 
own responsibility for putting in 
place proper arrangements to 
ensure that public business is 
conducted in accordance with 
the law and proper standards, 
and that public money is 
safeguarded and properly 
accounted for, and used 
economically, efficiently and 
effectively.

Basis of preparation:  We have prepared this External Audit Report (Report) in accordance with our responsibilities under the National 
Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and the terms of our Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) engagement.

Purpose of this report:  This Report is made to the Authority in order to communicate matters as required by International Audit 
Standards (ISAs) (UK and Ireland) and other matters coming to our attention during our audit work that we consider might be of interest 
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone (beyond that which 
we may have as auditors) for this Report or for the opinions we have formed in respect of this Report. 

Limitations on work performed:  This Report is separate from our audit opinion and does not provide an additional opinion on the 
Authority’s financial statements nor does it add to or extend or alter our duties and responsibilities as auditors.  We have not designed or 
performed procedures outside those required of us as auditors for the purpose of identifying or communicating any of the matters covered 
by this Report.  The matters reported are based on the knowledge gained as a result of being your auditors. We have not verified the 
accuracy or completeness of any such information other than in connection with and to the extent required for the purposes of our audit.

Status of our audit:  Our audit is complete.

Important notice
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Financial statements audit – see section 2 for further details

Subject to all outstanding queries and procedures being satisfactorily resolved we intend to issue an unqualified audit opinion on the Authority’s financial statements for the 
deadline of 31 July 2017, following the Authority adopting them and receipt of the management representations letter.  

We have completed our audit of the financial statements.  We have read the Narrative Report and reviewed the Annual Governance Statement (AGS).  Our key findings are:

• There are no unadjusted audit differences, explained in section 2 and appendix 2.

• We agreed presentational changes to the accounts with Finance, mainly related to compliance with the CIPFA / LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in 
the United Kingdom 2016/17.

• We have not asked management to provide any management representations additional to our routine requests.

• We will report that your AGS complies with delivering Good Governance guidance issued by CIPFA / SOLACE in April 2016.

• We reviewed the narrative report and have no matters to raise with you.

• We did not receive any queries or objections from local electors this year.

We are now in the completion stage of the audit and anticipate issuing our completion certificate on 21 July 2017.  We also intend to issue our 2016/17 Annual Audit Letter on 
11 September 2017.  The audit cannot be formally concluded and an audit certificate issued until the end of the Authority’s public inspection period on xx/xx/xx.  Until we have 
completed our consideration of any objections received before this date, we are unable to certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts in accordance with the 
requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. 

Value for money – see section 3 for further details

Based on the findings of our work, we have concluded that the Authority has adequate arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
We therefore anticipate issuing an unqualified value for money conclusion.

Section One

Summary
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Section One

Summary

Other  matters

ISA 260 requires us to communicate to you by exception ‘audit matters of governance interest that arise from the audit of the financial statements’ which include:

• Significant difficulties encountered during the audit;

• Significant matters arising from the audit that were discussed, or subject to correspondence with management;

• Other matters, if arising from the audit that, in the auditor's professional judgment, are significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process; and

• Matters specifically required by other auditing standards to be communicated to those charged with governance (e.g. significant deficiencies in internal control; issues 
relating to fraud, compliance with laws and regulations, subsequent events, non disclosure, related party, public interest reporting, opening balances, etc.).

There are no other matters which we wish to draw to your attention in addition to those highlighted in this report or our previous reports relating to the audit of the Authority’s 
2016/17 financial statements.

We identified no prior year recommendations that require further action by Management  We have made no new recommendations as a result of our 2016/17 work. 
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We audit your financial statements by undertaking the following:

We have completed the first six stages and report our key findings below:

Accounts production stage

Work Performed Before During After

1. Business understanding: review your operations   –

2. Controls: assess the control framework  – –

3. Prepared by Client Request (PBC): issue our prepared by client request  – –

4. Accounting standards: agree the impact of any new accounting standards   –

5. Accounts production: review the accounts production process   

6. Testing: test and confirm material or significant balances and disclosures –  

7. Representations and opinions: seek and provide representations before issuing our opinions   

Section Two

Financial statements audit

1.  Business 
understanding

In our 2016/17 audit plan we assessed your operations to identify significant issues that might have a financial statements consequence.  We confirmed this 
risk assessment as part of our audit work.  We provide an update on each of the risks identified later in this section.

2.  Assessment of 
the control 
environment

We assessed the effectiveness of your key financial system controls that prevent and detect material fraud and error.  We found that the financial controls 
on which we seek to place reliance are operating effectively.  We have made no recommendations for 2016/17. We reviewed work undertaken by your 
internal auditors, in accordance with ISA 610 and used the findings to inform our work.  We have chosen not to place reliance on their work due to the 
approach we adopted for the financial statements audit.

3.  Prepared by
client request 
(PBC)

We produced the PBC to summarise the working papers and evidence we ask you to collate as part of the preparation of the financial statements.  We 
discussed and tailored our request with the Principal Finance Officer and this was issued as a final document to the finance team. We are pleased to report 
that this has resulted in good-quality working papers with clear audit trails.  
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Section Two

Financial statements audit

4.  Accounting 
standards

We work with you to understand changes to accounting standards and other technical issues.  For 2016/17 these changes related to:

• Updates to the presentation of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the Movements in Reserves Statement and the 
introduction of the new Expenditure and Funding Analysis: This resulted in minor restatements to the 2015/16 CIES and Movement in Reserves 
Statement for the Authority and

• Amended guidance on the Annual Governance Statement

5.  Accounts 
Production

We received complete draft accounts on 31 May 2017 ahead of the DCLG 30 June 2017 deadline.  The accounting policies, accounting estimates and 
financial statement disclosures are in line with the requirements of the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17.  
We will debrief with Finance to share views on the final accounts audit which hopefully will lead to further efficiencies in the 2017/18 audit process.  The 
Authority has strengthened its financial reporting by finalising the accounts in a shorter timescale.  This puts the Authority in a good position to meet the 
new 2017/18 deadline.  We thank Finance for their cooperation throughout the visit which allowed the audit to progress and complete within the 
allocated timeframe. 

6. Testing We have summarised the findings from our testing of significant risks and areas of judgement in the financial statements on the following pages. During 
the audit we identified only presentational issues which have been adjusted as they have no material effect on the financial statements. The key 
presentational adjustment was for £2.7m to the Cash Flow Statement which we have detailed in appendix 2.

7.  Representations You are required to provide us with representations on specific matters such as your going concern assertion and whether the transactions in the 
accounts are legal and unaffected by fraud.  We provided a draft of this representation letter to the Finance Director on 29 June 2017.  We draw 
attention to the requirement in our representation letter for you to confirm to us that you have disclosed all relevant related parties to us.  
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Section Two

Financial statements audit

ISA 260 requires us to communicate to you by exception ‘audit matters of governance interest that arise from the audit of the financial statements’ which include:

— Significant difficulties encountered during the audit;

— Significant matters arising from the audit that were discussed, or subject to correspondence with Management;

— Other matters, if arising from the audit that, in the auditor's professional judgment, are significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process; and

— Matters specifically required by other auditing standards to be communicated to those charged with governance (e.g. significant deficiencies in internal control; issues relating 
to fraud, compliance with laws and regulations, subsequent events, non disclosure, related party, opening balances, public interest reporting, questions/objections, etc.).

There are no others matters which we wish to draw to your attention in addition to those highlighted in this report or our previous reports relating to the audit of the Authority’s 
2016/17 financial statements. 

To ensure that we provide a comprehensive summary of our work, we have over the next pages set out:

• The results of the procedures we performed over Changes in the pension liability due to LGPS Triennial Valuation which were identified as significant risks within our audit 
plan and which will form a part of our audit opinion;

• The results of our procedures to review the required risks of the fraudulent risk of revenue recognition and management override of control; and

• Our view of the level of prudence applied to key balances in the financial statements.  
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Section Two

Financial statements audit

SIGNIFICANT audit risk Account balances effected Summary of findings

Changes in the pension liability due to LGPS Triennial 
Valuation

During the year, the Local Government Pension Scheme has 
undergone a triennial valuation with an effective date of 31 
March 2016 in line with the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Administration) Regulations 2013. The Authority’s share of 
pensions assets and liabilities is determined in detail, and a 
large volume of data is provided to the actuary in order to carry 
out this triennial valuation.

There is a risk that the data provided to the actuary for the 
valuation exercise is inaccurate and that these inaccuracies 
affect the actuarial figures in the accounts. Most of the data is 
provided to the actuary by London Pensions Fund Authority, 
who administer the Pension Fund.

Pension Liability: £1.7m in 
2016/17

Our audit work focused on the material accuracy of the information provided to 
the actuary and the output of the actuary for both the triennial valuation and 
the 31 March 2017 valuation and included: 

- We assessed the competence, capability, objectivity and independence of  
Barnett Waddingham, as the external actuary.  We considered Barnett 
Waddingam’s reports in line with the requirements of IFRS. 

- We tested ELWA’s payroll and pension data provided to the actuary by 
both LB Barking and Dagenham and the LPFA to source data and ELWA 
records. 

- We agreed ELWA’s accounting entries and disclosures in the financial 
statements to information provided by the actuary as at 31 March 2017. 

We have no matters to bring to your attention following the completion of this 
work.
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Section Two

Financial statements audit

Other areas of audit focus

We identified 2 other areas of audit focus.  These are not considered to be significant risks as they are less likely to give rise to a material error.  Nonetheless these are areas of 
importance where we carry out audit procedures to ensure that there is no material misstatement.

Other areas of audit focus Account balances effected Summary of findings

PFI liability and related disclosures

The Authority entered into a 25 year PFI 
agreement in December 2002, which 
has a material effect on several aspects 
of the Authority’s financial statements, 
most significantly the relevant fixed 
assets and related liability. The fixed 
asset value has not significantly changed 
in year as a The material liability remains 
a significant disclosure dependent on a 
technical financial model.

PFI liability £72.9m in 2016/17 Our audit work focused on the appropriateness of the PFI model and the mathematical accuracy
within this.  Our audit testing included: 

- We confirmed the mathematical accuracy of the calculations within the model. 

- We agreed the relevant assumptions underpinning the model to the agreed PFI contract. 

- We obtained confirmation of the appropriateness of the model from Management and previous 
auditors as well as confirmation from Management that the model had not been changed since 
it was developed by BDO. 

- We agreed the financial statement disclosures and the calculated PFI liability back to the model 
to confirm the accuracy of the PFI reporting. 

Having completed our consideration we have no matters to report to the Authority.
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Section Two

Financial statements audit

Other areas of audit focus Account balances effected Summary of findings

Disclosures associated with retrospective restatement of CIES, EFA and 
MIRS

CIPFA has been working with stakeholders to develop better accountability 
through the financial statements as part of its ‘telling the whole story’ project. 
The objective is to make Local Government accounts more understandable and 
transparent to the reader in terms of how Councils are funded and how they use 
the funding to serve the local population. The project resulted in two main 
changes in respect of the 2016-17 Local Government Accounting Code (Code) 
as follows:

• Allowing local authorities to report on the same basis as they are organised 
by removing the requirement for the Service Reporting Code of Practice 
(SeRCOP) to be applied to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement (CIES); and

• Introducing an Expenditure and Funding Analysis (EFA) which provides a 
direct reconciliation between the way local authorities are funded and 
prepare their budget and the CIES. This analysis is supported by a 
streamlined Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS) and replaces the 
current segmental reporting note.

As a result of these changes retrospective restatement of CIES (cost of 
services) , EFA and MIRS is required from 1 April 2016 in the Statement of 
Accounts.

New disclosure requirements and restatement of accounts require compliance 
with relevant guidance and correct application of applicable accounting 
standards.

CIES, MIRS and EFA. Our audit work focused on the appropriateness of the new 
disclosures. Our testing included: 

- We confirmed the presentation of the new EFA in line with 
CIPFA requirements. 

- We agreed the figures provided in the EFA for both 2015/16 
and 2016/17 to underlying working papers, internal 
reporting and the CIES. 

- We confirmed the restatement of the CIES is in line with 
internal reporting, as required by CIPFA. 

- We checked that the updates to the CIES resulted in the 
appropriate restatements to the MIRS. The impact of this 
was the removal of the Earmarked Reserves, which is in 
line with CIPFA guidance. 

Having completed our consideration we have no matters to 
report to the Authority
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Section Two

Financial statements audit

Risks that ISAs 
require us to 
assess in all cases

Why Our findings from the audit

Fraud risk from 
revenue recognition

Professional standards require us to make a rebuttable presumption that the fraud risk from 
revenue recognition is a significant risk.

In our External Audit Plan 2016/17 we reported that we do not consider this to be a 
significant risk for the Authorities as there is unlikely to be an incentive to fraudulently 
recognise revenue. 

This is still the case. Since we have rebutted this 
presumed risk, there has been no impact on our audit 
work.

Fraud risk from 
management 
override of controls

Professional standards require us to communicate the fraud risk from management override 
of controls as significant because management is typically in a unique position to perpetrate 
fraud because of its ability to manipulate accounting records and prepare fraudulent 
financial statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively.

Our audit methodology incorporates the risk of management override as a default significant 
risk. We have not identified any specific additional risks of management override relating to 
this audit.

In line with our methodology, we carried out appropriate controls testing and substantive 
procedures, including over journal entries, accounting estimates and significant transactions 
that are outside the normal course of business, or are otherwise unusual.

There are no matters arising from this work that we need 
to bring to your attention.
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Narrative report of the Authority 

We have reviewed the Authority’s narrative report and have confirmed that it is consistent with the financial statements and our understanding of the Authority.  

Queries from local electors

We did not receive any questions or objections from members of the public this year. 

Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) 

We reviewed your WGA consolidation pack and there are no issues to report.  We anticipate issuing an unqualified consistency report. 

Audit certificate

In order for us to issue an audit certificate, we are required to have completed all our responsibilities relating to the financial year. We are not in a position to issue our audit 
certificate with the audit opinion as HM Treasury has recently issued its guidance for completing the WGA and issued the consolidation packs that authorities need to complete.  
The deadline for the Authority to prepare the consolidation pack is July 2017 with an audit deadline of October 2017.  We aim to complete the work in September 2017.

We have not received any objections to the accounts from local electors, the inspection notice period is due to end on 14/07/17 therefore we expect to issue our audit certificate 
in July 2017 following completion of the above.

Audit fees

Our scale fee for the audit was £18,720 plus VAT (£18,720 in 2015/16). This fee was in line with that highlighted within our audit plan agreed by the Authority.

We have not completed any non-audit work at the Authority in year.  

Section Two

Financial statements audit
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For 2016/17 our value for money (VFM) work follows the NAO’s guidance.  It is risk based and targets audit effort on the areas of greatest audit risk.  Our methodology is 
summarised below. We did not identify any significant VFM risks and provide a summary below of the other areas of audit focus arising from our VFM work.  

In line with the risk-based approach set out above, and in our External Audit Plan we have: 

— Assessed the Authority’s key business risks which are relevant to our VFM conclusion;

— Identified the residual audit risks for our VFM conclusion, taking account of work undertaken in previous years or as part of our financial statements audit; and

— Considered the results of relevant work by the Authority, review agencies and inspectorates in relation to these risk areas.

We specifically considered the level of reserves held by the Authority as in 2015/16 this was identified as being lower than the Authority’s agreed target of £3m.  As at 31 March 
2017 the Authority has achieved its £3m target and the Medium Term Financial Plan shows that this position continues to improve as plans are put in place for the end of the PFI 
scheme.  We therefore do not deem the level of reserves to be an issue. 

We are satisfied that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ending 31 March 2017, 
based upon the criteria of informed decision making, sustainable resource deployment and working with partners and third parties. 

Section Three

Value for money

Continually re-assess potential VFM risks

VFM audit risk 
assessment

Financial statements 
and other audit work

Identification of 
significant VFM 

risks (if any) Conclude on 
arrangements to 

secure VFM

No further work required

Assessment of work by other 
review agencies

Specific local risk based work

VFM
 conclusion
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The assessment of what is material is a matter of professional judgment and includes consideration of three aspects: 

• Material errors by value are those which are simply of significant numerical size to distort the reader’s perception of the financial statements. Our assessment of the 
threshold for this depends upon the size of key figures in the financial statements, as well as other factors such as the level of public interest in the financial statements;

• Errors which are material by nature may not be large in value, but may concern accounting disclosures of key importance and sensitivity, for example the salaries of senior 
staff; and

• Errors that are material by context are those that would alter key figures in the financial statements from one result to another – for example, errors that change successful 
performance against a target to failure.

We used the same planning materiality reported in our External Audit Plan 2016/17.

Materiality for the Authority’s accounts was set at £1.2 million which equates to around 2% of gross operating expenditure. 

We design our procedures to detect errors in specific accounts at a lower level of precision.

Reporting to Authority Board

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are material to our opinion on the financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless report to the 
Authority Board any misstatements of lesser amounts to the extent that these are identified by our audit work.

Under ISA 260, we are obliged to report omissions or misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. ISA 260 defines ‘clearly trivial’ 
as matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually or in aggregate and whether judged by any quantitative or qualitative criteria. ISA 450 requires us to 
request that uncorrected misstatements are corrected.

In the context of the Authority, we propose that an individual difference could normally be considered to be clearly trivial if it is less than £60,000 for the Authority. 

Where management have corrected material misstatements identified during the course of the audit, we will consider whether those corrections should be communicated to the 
Authority Board to assist it in fulfilling its governance responsibilities.

Appendix 1

Materiality and reporting of audit differences 
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Unadjusted audit differences

Under UK auditing standards (ISA (UK&I) 260) we are required to provide the Authority with a summary of unadjusted audit differences (including disclosure misstatements) 
identified during the course of our audit, other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’, which are not reflected in the financial statements. In line with ISA (UK&I) 450 we request that 
you correct uncorrected misstatements. However, they will have no effect on the opinion in our auditor’s report, individually or in aggregate. 

As communicated previously with the Authority, there are no uncorrected audit differences.

Adjusted audit differences 

A small number of minor amendments focused on presentational improvements have been made to the draft financial statements. There have been no corrected audit 
differences that impact the reported financial position. 

The one significant presentational adjustment related to a £2.7m addition to PPE which was purchased by Shanks. This asset did not create a cost to ELWA and no payment 
was made for this asset, however it had been included in the Cash Flow Statement as a cash payment. The Cash Flow Statement has been updated accordingly in the final 
version of the financial statements. 

Appendix 2

Audit differences
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This appendix communicates all significant facts and matters that bear on KPMG LLP’s independence and objectivity and informs you of the requirements of ISA 260 (UK and 
Ireland) Communication of Audit Matters to Those Charged with Governance.

Integrity, objectivity and independence

We are required to communicate to you in writing at least annually all significant facts and matters, including those related to the provision of non-audit services and the 
safeguards put in place that, in our professional judgement, may reasonably be thought to bear on KPMG LLP’s independence and the objectivity of the Engagement Lead and 
audit team.  We have considered the fees paid to us by the Authority for professional services provided by us during the reporting period. We are satisfied that our general 
procedures support our independence and objectivity.

General procedures to safeguard independence and objectivity

KPMG LLP is committed to being and being seen to be independent. As part of our ethics and independence policies all KPMG LLP audit partners and staff annually confirm 
their compliance with our Ethics and Independence Manual including in particular that they have no prohibited shareholdings.  Our Ethics and Independence Manual is fully 
consistent with the requirements of the Ethical Standards issued by the UK Auditing Practices Board. As a result we have underlying safeguards in place to maintain 
independence through: instilling professional values; communications; internal accountability; risk management; and independent reviews.  We would be happy to discuss any of 
these aspects of our procedures in more detail. There are no other matters that, in our professional judgement, bear on our independence which need to be disclosed.

Audit matters

We are required to comply with ISA (UK and Ireland) 260 Communication of Audit Matters to Those Charged with Governance when carrying out the audit.  ISA 260 requires 
that we consider the following audit matters and formally communicate them to those charged with governance:

• Relationships that may bear on the firm’s independence and the integrity and objectivity of the audit engagement lead and audit staff;

• The general approach and overall scope of the audit, including any expected limitations thereon, or any additional requirements;

• The selection of, or changes in, significant accounting policies and practices that have, or could have, a material effect on the Authority’s financial statements; 

• The potential effect on the accounts of any material risks and exposures, such as pending litigation, that are required to be disclosed in the financial statements; 

• Audit adjustments, whether or not recorded by the entity that have, or could have, a material effect on the Authority’s financial statements;

• Material uncertainties related to events and conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern;

• Disagreements with Management about matters that, individually or in aggregate, could be significant to the Authority’s financial statements or the auditor’s report. These 
communications include consideration of whether the matter has, or has not, been resolved and the significance of the matter; 

• Expected modifications to the auditor’s report;

Appendix 3

Audit independence
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• Other matters warranting attention by those charged with governance, such as material weaknesses in internal control, questions regarding management integrity, and fraud 
involving management; and

• Any other matters agreed upon in the terms of the audit engagement.

We continue to discharge these responsibilities through our attendance at Authority commentary and reporting and, in the case of uncorrected misstatements, through our 
request for management representations.

Auditor declaration 

In relation to the audit of the financial statements of East London Waste Authority for the financial year ending 31 March 2017, we confirm that there were no relationships 
between KPMG LLP and East London Waste Authority, its directors and senior management and its affiliates that we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on the 
objectivity and independence of the audit engagement lead and audit staff. We also confirm that we have complied with Ethical Standards and the Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Ltd requirements in relation to independence and objectivity.

We have not undertaken any non-audit services for the Authority.

Appendix 3

Audit independence
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Audit quality is at the core of everything we do at KPMG and we believe that it is not just about reaching the right opinion, but how we reach that opinion.  To ensure that every 
partner and employee concentrates on the fundamental skills and behaviours required to deliver an appropriate and independent opinion, we have developed our global Audit 

Quality Framework

Audit quality framework
Appendix 4
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opportunities to improve quality and provide insights
- Obtain feedback from key stakeholders
- Evaluate and appropriately respond to feedback and 

findings Strateg
y

Interim 
fieldwor

k

Statutory 
reporting

Debrie
f

- Professional judgement and scepticism 
- Direction, supervision and review
- Ongoing mentoring and on the job coaching
- Critical assessment of audit evidence
- Appropriately supported and documented conclusions
- Relationships built on mutual respect
- Insightful, open and honest two way communications

- Technical training and support
- Accreditation and licensing 
- Access to specialist networks
- Consultation processes
- Business understanding and industry knowledge
- Capacity to deliver valued insights

- Select clients within risk tolerance
- Manage audit responses to risk
- Robust client and engagement acceptance and 

continuance processes
- Client portfolio management

- Recruitment, promotion, retention
- Development of core competencies, skills and 

personal qualities
- Recognition and reward for quality work
- Capacity and resource management 
- Assignment of team members and specialists 

- KPMG Audit and Risk Management Manuals
- Audit technology tools, templates and guidance
- Independence policies

Commitment to 
continuous 

improvement–

Association 
with the right 

clients

Clear standards 
and robust audit 

tools

Recruitment, 
development and 

assignment of 
appropriately 

qualified personnel

Commitment 
to technical 
excellence 

and quality service 
delivery

Performance of 
effective and 

efficient audits

Page 101 of 108



Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent 
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights 
reserved.
The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

kpmg.com/socialmedia kpmg.com/app

Page 102 of 108

http://kpmg.com/socialmedia
http://kpmg.com/socialmedia


 
 

Neil Hewitson Agenda Item 5 – Appendix B 
Director 
KPMG LLP 
15 Canada Square 
London 
E14 5GL 30 June 2017  
 
 
 
Dear Neil 
 
This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial 
statements of East London Waste Authority (“the Authority”), for the year ended 31 March 
2017, for the purpose of expressing an opinion:  
 
i. as to whether these financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 

position of the Authority as at 31 March 2017 and of the Authority’s expenditure and 
income for the year then ended; and 

ii. whether the financial statements have been prepared properly in accordance with the 
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2016/17. 

 
These financial statements comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement, Expenditure and Funding Analysis Balance Sheet, and 
Cash Flow Statement, and the related notes. 
 
The Authority confirms that the representations it makes in this letter are in accordance 
with the definitions set out in the Appendix to this letter. 
 
The Authority confirms that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, having made such 
inquiries as it considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing itself: 
 
Financial statements 
 
1. The Authority has fulfilled its responsibilities, as set out in the Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2015, for the preparation of financial statements that: 
 

i. give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 
2017 and of the Authority’s expenditure and income for the year then ended; 
and  

ii. have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17. 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. 
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2. Measurement methods and significant assumptions used by the Authority in making 
accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.  

 
3. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which IAS 10 

Events after the reporting period requires adjustment or disclosure have been 
adjusted or disclosed. 

 
Information provided 
 
4. The Authority has provided you with: 
 

• access to all information of which it is aware, that is relevant to the 
preparation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation and 
other matters; 

• additional information that you have requested from the Authority for the 
purpose of the audit; and 

• unrestricted access to persons within the Authority from whom you 
determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

 
5. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in 

the financial statements. 
 
6. The Authority confirms the following: 
 

i) The Authority has disclosed to you the results of its assessment of the risk that 
the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

 
Included in the Appendix to this letter are the definitions of fraud, including 
misstatements arising from fraudulent financial reporting and from misappropriation 
of assets. 

 
ii) The Authority has disclosed to you all information in relation to: 

 
a) Fraud or suspected fraud that it is aware of and that affects the Authority 

and involves: 

• management; 

• employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

• others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial 
statements; and 

b) allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the financial statements 
communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or 
others. 

 
In respect of the above, the Authority acknowledges its responsibility for such internal 
control as it determines necessary for the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  In particular, the 
Authority acknowledges its responsibility for the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud and error. 

 
7. The Authority has disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or 

suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be 
considered when preparing the financial statements.  
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8. The Authority has disclosed to you and has appropriately accounted for and/or 
disclosed in the financial statements, in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, all known actual or possible litigation 
and claims whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial 
statements.  

 
9. The Authority has disclosed to you the identity of the Authority’s related parties and 

all the related party relationships and transactions of which it is aware.  All related 
party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 
disclosed in accordance with IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures. 

 
10. The Authority confirms that:  
 

a) The financial statements disclose all of the key risk factors, assumptions made 
and uncertainties surrounding the Authority’s ability to continue as a going 
concern as required to provide a true and fair view. 

 
b) Any uncertainties disclosed are not considered to be material and therefore do 

not cast significant doubt on the ability of the Authority to continue as a going 
concern. 

 
11. On the basis of the process established by the Authority and having made appropriate 

enquiries, the Authority is satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the 
valuation of defined benefit obligations are consistent with its knowledge of the 
business and are in accordance with the requirements of IAS 19 (revised) Employee 
Benefits. 

 
The Authority further confirms that: 

 
a) all significant retirement benefits, including any arrangements that are: 

• statutory, contractual or implicit in the employer's actions; 
• arise in the UK and the Republic of Ireland or overseas; 
• funded or unfunded; and 
• approved or unapproved,  

 
have been identified and properly accounted for; and 

 
b) all plan amendments, curtailments and settlements have been identified and 

properly accounted for. 

 
This letter was tabled and agreed at the meeting of the Authority Board on 18 July 2017.  
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
 
 
Maria G Christofi 
Finance Director and Section 73 Officer  
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Appendix to the Authority Representation Letter of East London Waste 
Authority: Definitions 
 
Financial Statements 
 
A complete set of financial statements comprises: 
 
• A Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the period; 

• A Balance Sheet as at the end of the period; 

• A Movement in Reserves Statement for the period; 

.       An Expenditure and Funding Analysis for the period.   

• A Cash Flow Statement for the period; and 

• Notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

 
A local authority is required to present group accounts in addition to its single entity 
accounts where required by chapter nine of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17.  
 
An entity may use titles for the statements other than those used in IAS 1. For example, 
an entity may use the title 'statement of comprehensive income' instead of 'statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income'. 
 
Material Matters 
 
Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are 
material. 
 
IAS 1.7 and IAS 8.5 state that: 
 

“Material omissions or misstatements of items are material if they could, individually 
or collectively, influence the economic decisions that users make on the basis of the 
financial statements.  Materiality depends on the size and nature of the omission or 
misstatement judged in the surrounding circumstances.  The size or nature of the 
item, or a combination of both, could be the determining factor.” 

 
Fraud 
 
Fraudulent financial reporting involves intentional misstatements including omissions of 
amounts or disclosures in financial statements to deceive financial statement users. 
 
Misappropriation of assets involves the theft of an entity’s assets.  It is often accompanied 
by false or misleading records or documents in order to conceal the fact that the assets are 
missing or have been pledged without proper authorisation. 
 
Error 
 
An error is an unintentional misstatement in financial statements, including the omission of 
an amount or a disclosure. 
 
Prior period errors are omissions from, and misstatements in, the entity’s financial 
statements for one or more prior periods arising from a failure to use, or misuse of, reliable 
information that: 
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a) was available when financial statements for those periods were authorised for 
issue; and 

b) could reasonably be expected to have been obtained and taken into account 
in the preparation and presentation of those financial statements. 

 
Such errors include the effects of mathematical mistakes, mistakes in applying accounting 
policies, oversights or misinterpretations of facts, and fraud. 
 
Management 
 
For the purposes of this letter, references to “management” should be read as 
“management and, where appropriate, those charged with governance”.   
 
Related Party and Related Party Transaction 
 
Related party: 
 
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial 
statements (referred to in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures as the “reporting entity”). 
 
a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a reporting entity if 

that person: 

i. has control or joint control over the reporting entity;  

ii. has significant influence over the reporting entity; or  

iii. is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a 
parent of the reporting entity. 

b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies: 

i. The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which 
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the 
others). 

ii. One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate 
or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member). 

iii. Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. 

iv. One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate 
of the third entity. 

v. The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of 
either the reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity.  If the 
reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related 
to the reporting entity. 

vi. The entity is controlled, or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a). 

vii. A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a 
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the 
entity). 

 
Key management personnel in a local authority context are all chief officers (or equivalent), 
elected members, the chief executive of the authority and other persons having the 
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the 
authority, including the oversight of these activities. 
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A reporting entity is exempt from the disclosure requirements of IAS 24.18 in relation to 
related party transactions and outstanding balances, including commitments, with: 
 
a) a government that has control, joint control or significant influence over the reporting 

entity; and 

b) another entity that is a related party because the same government has control, joint 
control or significant influence over both the reporting entity and the other entity. 

 
 
Related party transaction: 
 
A transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity and a related 
party, regardless of whether a price is charged. 
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